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Corporate Information and Key Dates

NRERNREERY
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese
versions) is available to any shareholder of the Company
(the "Shareholder(s)") either in printed form and on the websites
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends the
Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders have the right to change their choice of receipt of our
future Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice
in writing to the Company or the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, by post or by email at is-
ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Results Summary

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2022 (the “Year”).

Revenue

WA

Gross profit

=7

Loss for the year

FERE

Loss per share
SREE

REXEEXRERERAB(HEAT ) ZES
T(EFE HEF ) REELALDREAWBER
B (AR ER ) B E2022F68308 LFE
(TRFE ) 2EEBZGAEE -

For the year ended 30 June

#HZE6H30BLLEFE
2022 2021 Changes
HK$°000 HK$'000 i)
FHT FHET

306,713 192,908 +59.0%
178,996 111,172 +61.0%
218,402 228,078 N/A
&

HK$0.06 HK$0.07 N/A
AT BT NiEA

Emperor Cinemas - Shanshan Outlet Plaza, Ganzhou

HEEZY, - BN R RTEYES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk D

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group’s total revenue increased by 59.0% to
HK$306.7 million (2021: HK$192.9 million). Despite the revival of
business in the first half of the Year, the resurgence of Covid-19
in mainland China and Hong Kong markets during the second
half of the Year caused disruption to its cinema operation. In the
meantime, less rental concessions were offered by landlords, hence
a net loss for the Year of HK$218.4 million (2021: HK$228.1 million)
was recorded. Loss per share was HK$0.06 (2021: HK$0.07).

MARKET REVIEW

During the first half of the Year, social distancing measures were
eased for certain periods, hence the public’s entertainment and
leisure activities resumed to a certain extent. In the meantime,
the continued expansion of China’s middle income group has
contributed to an increase in cinema patrons. According to figures
published by the China Film Administration, China once again
surpassed the United States in annual box office revenue in 2021,
and remained the world’s largest movie market for the second
consecutive year. With Chinese government’s efforts to develop
the industry, the popularity of China-produced movies increased
domestically, as they became the major contributor to China’s box
office revenue.

Nevertheless, in the second half of the Year, Hong Kong and
mainland China were hit hard by the resurgence of Covid-19,
leading to implementation of stringent anti-pandemic measures.
Temporary closures of cinemas in Hong Kong and mainland China
inevitably affected box office revenues and impeded the recovery of
the industry.

Emperor Cinemas -
Shin Kong Place, Chengdu
BE T - AR
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roup Limited

ES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses, which include (i) cinema operation; and
(ii) investments in films.

Cinema Operation

Revenue from the cinema operation segment increased by 59.0%
to HK$306.7 million (2021: HK$192.9 million), which mainly
included the revenue of box office takings amounted to HK$270.1
million (2021: HK$164.1 million), accounting for 88.1% (2021:
85.1%) of the cinema operation revenue. In terms of revenue
by geographical segment, revenue from mainland China and
Hong Kong was HK$122.9 million (2021: HK$133.2 million) and
HK$162.8 million (2021: HK$59.5 million), respectively, accounting
for 40.1% (2021: 69.0%) and 53.1% (2021: 30.8%) of the cinema
operation revenue.

— =
Emperog&ultﬂeﬁ)up Limited~ o
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 ZE3R

75 [0l B8
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e BT EE ; Kk(i)BF

B EE

1B B &8 0 88 2 WA I8 10159.0% % 306,700,000
& Jo(20214F © 192,900,000 7Tt ) H # *
£ 815 F B W A270,100,000% 7T (20214 :
164,100,0007 7T ) > 15 By B 2 18 Wg A 288.1%
(20214 : 85.1%) - @ D HE & UK A > R B
SR Pt e B B 2 WA 3 51 #%122,900,00078 7T
(20214 @ 133,200,0007% 7T ) k162,800,000
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A 240.1% (20214 : 69.0%) 5253.1% (20214 :
30.8%) ©

Emperor Cinemas - iISQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk D

During the Year, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in and the loan due from the target company at
an aggregate consideration of HK$4.0, from a company which
is indirectly controlled by the Company’s substantial shareholder
(the “Vendor”) (the “Acquisition”). The target company and its
subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) are principally engaged in cinema
operation, covering one cinema in Hong Kong and eight cinemas
in mainland China. Details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 January 2022 and circular
dated 25 March 2022.

Upon completion of the Acquisition during the Year, the Group
ran a total of 24 cinemas as at 30 June 2022, which comprised 17
Emperor Cinemas in mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Malaysia, and 7 Emperor UA Cinemas in mainland China, offering
a total of 192 houses with approximately 25,700 seats. All these
cinemas are situated in strategic locations, and provide premium
entertainment services.

Emperor Cinemas - Entertainment Building, Central
ZEE BT - FIRIESEAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

Located in either large-scale commercial and entertainment
complex or upscale residential areas, the cinemas of the Group are
positioned as high-end premium cinemas equipped with advanced
technologies including IMAX® theatre system, ScreenX, 4DX
or MX4D motion systems, D-Box seats and Dolby Atmos audio
system. They also feature VIP houses and VIP lounges, where
the audiences can enjoy premium and exclusive entertainment
services.

During the Year, an Emperor Cinemas was newly opened in
Times Square, Hong Kong, in December 2021. Located at the
core area of Causeway Bay, it is the largest cinema in the district,
boasting 5 houses spanning three floors, including two Dolby
Atmos-equipped houses. Deliberately reorganised and refurbished,
the lobby has become more spacious, and the enlarged waiting
zone is equipped with a VIP ticketing counter, and a bigger-than-
ever snack corner to offer audiences a cosy, relaxing start to their
cinema experience. In addition, this is Hong Kong’s first cinema in
which all seats feature wireless charging mobile phone mounts. The
Group is dedicated to elevating the experience for its audiences, by
offering the most thoughtful and detail-oriented services.

AEB MBI KRB B2 IR %o ol & s E
T& EEMASIHKEBEEL FofEiEIMAX®
5 Bt % 4~ ScreenX ~ 4DXBMX4DE X % 4~
D-BoxB IR ittt 2 S E S E AR FLER
- ZEERTHREErRAEERTE <
BB EZEEMER NIRRT

MARFE » BEEFET2021F 128 R EBRKE
BIHE A RIA#EET R SEARAK
BYBIR » S =8 - RASEB MR EFE
BB L2 RBRBREL  KEERSEEMRE
REERERBRAE  BEXTHERERAER
EEE BRAEATHERER K TEHER—
EEER BB R - IS IERFBERE
BMEEITECHE T FRERTERERERR K&
EZEBRHEREOREFREORIRT RIS
BT HERER -

Emperor Cinemas -Times Square, Causeway Bay

HEET - SRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk D

Besides, the Group has newly opened its first Emperor Cinemas
in Macau in November 2021. Situated at Lisboeta Macau, it offers
9 houses with approximately 1,200 seats. Brand-new experiences
include Macau’s first IMAX® theatre with IMAX® with Laser
projection technology and 12.0 surround sound system, as well
as the MX4D Motion EFX Theatre developed by American firm
MediaMation, and it is Macau’s one-and-only theatre with Dolby
Atmos® panoramic sound system. Apart from these, the VIP House
— the CORONET is also available, providing first-class services and
a luxurious viewing treat to its audiences.

Investments in Films

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had investments in certain film
productions at the fair value of HK$5.9 million (2021: HK$5.5
million).

Emperor Cinemas - Lisboeta Macau
HEEE - BFIERA

tE4h > AREETT2021F 11 BB TR EEEE
BEfm » HASEFORPIR R 2 SR (HORI AR AY
1,2001B EE AL - 8T RS BR B2 A 2R P B B IMAX K
BRBEIR A IMAX® with LaserBRIE T 5 12.081E
BFEMES  UKkHBAEBAFIMediaMationfi 389
MXADEN RUAS RUBBR B » B 23R PIME—RALEL

ERBMBRE - FRILZ I TRES Eﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁm
the CORONET » & ¥ RIZHIERARTS REER

=
HERo

BERE

502022668300 FEEMBE FTEERER
&> H A f (& & £5900,000%8 7T (20214 :
5,500,000 7t) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

PROSPECTS

Subsequent to the Year, the Group cooperated with MCL Cinemas
in introducing the Emperor Cinemas Plus+ and MCL Cinemas
Plus+ in Hong Kong. The first MCL Cinemas Plus+ was opened in
Plaza Hollywood in Diamond Hill in July 2022, which is the cinema
with the largest capacity in East Kowloon, while the first Emperor
Cinemas Plus+ is expected to be opened in 2023.

Looking ahead, apart from continued efforts in expanding its
cinema network, the Group will endeavour to elevate its customers’
entertainment experience by offering thoughtful, detail-oriented
services. The Group will also closely monitor the market conditions
and promptly respond as appropriate. Although Covid-19 has
somewhat hindered the development of China’s film industry in the
past two years, the Group foresees a positive future given the rising
disposable income and ongoing improvements of living standards
in China, as well as the five-year plan laid out by the China Film
Administration. With its long-established Emperor brand label, and
riding on its strategic network, the Group will strive to strengthen its
core competencies in order to seize the opportunities arising as the
industry recovers from the pandemic.

-

ttire Group Limited 28 = X {EE = £ B A RAF
' P :

Al =

RAFEER  AEBEAMCLEIRGE REEBE
HEmperor Cinemas Plus+XMCL Cinemas
Plus+ > &5BMCL Cinemas Plus+E72202257
Ba#EALUEGREESRHE ARNLESER
BB > & R Emperor Cinemas Plus+78&t
2023 FERE -

RERR RGBT EBIREAIN  REER
BiBRMHE DB RBR IR BRI R
B o REBTRBYIER TN I ER IR ER
REE-BEBEMEMBTRBFEBEET-—EREL
PEBE T FEIER ERNE R BER PR AW
ABIER T R £ 7E KRR B & - IR B R ER
BHRIENEFHE AEERRARER BE
HE L ISAREE MR > DU /B3 H B -
REERRNMBREZ OS> LIBETER
R IBE R RAVIIE o

Emperor Cinemas - Citywalk, Tsuen Wan
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk D

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$117.4 million (2021: HK$56.9 million), which are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

To finance its operations and capital expenditure, the Group utilises
cash flows generated from operations and from loan facilities
granted by a related party and a bank. As at 30 June 2022, the
Group had total borrowings of HK$542.7 million (2021: HK$333.0
million), which comprise a loan from a related party of HK$452.5
million (2021: HK$282.4 million), bank loan of HK$20.0 million
(2021: HK$7.0 million) and amount due to non-controlling interests
of HK$70.2 million (2021: HK$43.6 million), respectively. Except
for the amount due to non-controlling interests, which is unsecured
and interest-free, all these borrowings are unsecured and interest-
bearing. The gearing ratio of the Group (expressed as a percentage
of total borrowings over total assets) was 30.0% (2021: 19.3%) as
at 30 June 2022.

Management has closely monitored the development of the
Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on the current and anticipated
liquidity of the Group in the future. Having considered the existing
improvement measures implemented by the Group and the
available loan facilities granted by the related party and the bank,
the Directors believe that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements for the foreseeable future.

B

HthAr#HE R
uuéﬁJﬁﬁ&,\ﬁ““ﬁﬁ

122022668308 7EEZRE RIS EEY
#117,400,0007% 7t (20214F : 56,900,0007%&7T) »
FEUBTRAREGES

KAEBFBBAESEEL YIRS —RMEAL
RIBTIREZERME  AHSEREARZ HIE
HEER2022F68300  ZEBZBEES
542,700,00078 75 (20214 : 333,000,000 75) »
DRIEERE —REEA T ZER452,500,000
7B 70 (20214 1 282,400,000 5T ) SR B =&
20,000,0007 7t (20214 : 7,000,000 75) & F&
3 IF 2= RE #E 25 FXIE70,200,00078 7T (20214 -
43,600,000 75) © Bfﬁgﬁﬂﬂ’“ﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ
RS FIEZEEENABRIKRKETE
2022668308 AEBE 2 EES B X (R
REERUBREENLLE) £30.0% (20214 :
19.3%)

EEE-—ERYEENERSRBENERKRER
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RE] R RIWEMBMEFRE
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Emperor Cinemas - Emperor Group Centre, Beijing
HEEW - IR EEEF L

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENX{CEEXEEEAIRAT 11

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Macau
Pataca and Malaysian Ringgit. As most of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and transactions were transacted at and denominated
in the functional currency of its foreign operations, the Group was
not exposed to significant risk relating to the fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates during the Year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING

PERIOD

On 15 July 2022, the Company announced that Emperor UA
Cinemas Limited (“Emperor UA”, an indirect 70%-owned
subsidiary of the Company) commenced legal proceedings in the
Court of First Instance in the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) by way of originating
summons for an injunction order restraining Lark China Cinema
Investments Limited (“UA Minority Shareholder”, a 30%-equity
shareholder of Emperor UA, and a business partner since the
commencement of business of Emperor UA Cinemas) from
presenting a winding-up petition against Emperor UA, based on
the alleged shareholder loan of approximately HK$70.0 million
(“Alleged Shareholder Loan”) in respect of which a statutory
demand dated 30 June 2022 was served on Emperor UA by UA
Minority Shareholder. On 26 July 2022, the Company announced
that the High Court has granted a permanent full injunction order in
favour of Emperor UA restraining the presentation of the aforesaid
winding-up petition based on the statutory demand. Besides, UA
Minority Shareholder started a new court proceeding by filing a
winding-up petition to the High Court against Emperor UA under
the provision of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
on 22 July 2022 in relation to the Alleged Shareholder Loan and
inter alia, on grounds of insolvency. Details were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 15 July and 26 July 2022.

12 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEEXEEEBRAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk D

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s number of employees was 745
(2021: 436). Total staff costs including the Directors’ remuneration
and other staff costs for the Year were HK$85.3 million (2021:
HK$58.9 million). Each employees’ remuneration was determined
in accordance with individual’s responsibilities, competence and
skills, experience and performance, as well as market pay levels.
Staff benefits include medical and life insurance, provident funds
and other competitive fringe benefits. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme to provide incentives or rewards to the staff.

2 8 B #rBf B R

2022668300 ZEE £ B B ET745 (2021
F436) B AEEETH AR (BIEESEH
BN R EAth & TR 7A) 85,300,00078 7T (20214 :
58,900,00078 7t) - B E BN TH R BB A RS -
BE D R By ~ 88 B fe RIF A K T 35 BN /K T 8
E-BETEMNOEBERASRE AEEKRHE
HMEBRFHINEHNFB AFBAERET A&
NE B RN —IERERG ST o
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBEAEBZER

Executive Director (Chairperson)

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Former Name: Fan Man Seung), aged
59, an Executive Director of the Company and Chairperson of the
Board. Ms. Fan joined the Company in March 2017 and has been
responsible for the Group's strategic planning, business growth and
development as well as overseeing different functions within the
Group. She is also the Chairperson of the Executive Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (‘Emperor International”),
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor
E Hotel”), Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887)
(“Emperor W&J”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code:
1711) (“Ulferts”), all also being listed members under Emperor
Group. Having over 33 years of corporate management experience,
Ms. Fan possesses diversified experience in different businesses
ranging from cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling
and retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer by
profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a
Master's Degree in Business Administration.

Executive Director

Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 36, an Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yeung joined the Company in March 2017, and has been actively
formulating the Group's innovative strategies by integrating digital
technologies with premium services to position high-end markets for
the Group's cultural industry business. He is also the vice chairman
of Emperor Entertainment Group and Emperor Motion Pictures,
assisting in leading entertainment production and investment,
artiste management, film investment and distribution, and cinema
development and operations. Besides, Mr. Yeung has a wide
range of experience in property investment and development, hotel
operations, financial and securities services, retailing of watch
and jewellery, media and publication, furniture and furnishing, etc.
Mr. Yeung is also the vice chairman and an executive director of
Emperor International, which is a listed member under Emperor
Group.

14 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

HITER(XFF)
SEEE RESIR ) AERBRITESFSRESS
TR BUERITEIBMBARET BT
REEZRIEFE  EHFRRAER  URER
AEENZABINE-REABERRBAITEER
T REEEEREEERZETIREURER
BETHEARZES - BRLTHRTAREER
EEBRAF (MM 163) (THEEMEKE))
REREEERRAT (RIS 296) (THE
REGHERE ) REEFRERRAT (RMHAE:
887) (TR 2RI E ) RMEMEEKRARAR (A&
PARSE 171D (TBME)) ZES > F RE T A
REEEBENZ LHNE SEXETHEREIZFZ
TEREEGR REEXBEERRERKEE
UEREBERRE - MERERER BHEE
B BHRKETE - RAMERTE - SHES
BB BABERBEARRESSEBRAFE
2R KA REREXEMER RSB ERE
STEM > WA T EIEm TR

O —

TE=

B E36H AL ATRTEERNITE
EYRME o425 ER2017TE3 B MBEAAT >
A ERE EAI IR &S BIER B R B
R AXEE AL LEETSETEE
o mMARSIRMERRBRSELATE 17
BEEIR R E RIS A B  BERER
BT BRI EIE - b MR E MR
EYERERRR GEESE  SRBERE
BHRHETE  GERDIRY RRRERNGE
LN T AR o IR A S EE Y
BIEERMITES ZADARSEEETY
HARE o



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBAEBZER

Executive Director

Wong Chi Fai, aged 66, joined the Company in March 2017 as an
Executive Director of the Company and has been responsible for
the Group's strategic planning, business growth and development
as well as overseeing the financial management of the Group.
He is a member of the Executive Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong is also a director
of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and
Ulferts. Having over 30 years of finance and management
experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experiences in different
businesses ranging from cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, manufacturing, property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of
watch and jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial
and securities services, artiste management as well as media
and publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 59, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is also
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Ms.
Hughes is currently engaged in the management of entertainment
businesses involving production and distribution of music, TV
programmes and motion pictures as well as event performance
and artiste management. She was previously the Chief Executive
Officer of New Media Group and has over 30 years' experience in
media and publishing business. Prior to that, she worked for Hong
Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company Limited as Program
Presenter and Producer as well as for Hong Kong Cable Television
Limited as Channel Manager of Entertainment Channel and
Controller for Program Development and Production for more than
10 years.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBEAEBZER

Independent Non-executive Director

Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms. Chan is
a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. She is a retired solicitor and with over
20 years of experience as independent non-executive director of
various listed companies. Currently, she is also an independent
non-executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 997) and Emperor W&J. Ms. Chan graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor's Degree in Laws.

Ho Tat Kuen, aged 48, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2016. Mr. Ho is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong since 2009 and has over 24 years of experience
in accounting profession. Mr. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong, and is a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong.

Tam Sau Ying, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2018. She is also
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam is a co-founder and partner of Messrs. Vitus
Lawyers (formerly known as Leung, Tam & Wong, Solicitors). She
has over 20 years of experience in the legal profession and is also
an accredited mediator and a China-Appointed Attesting Officer.
She graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Social Science Degree and gained her Master of Arts
Degree from University of Essex, England. Ms. Tam later studied
law in The University of Hong Kong and was admitted as a solicitor
in 2001.
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Directors’ Report
EEgRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses which include (i) cinema operation; and
(i) investment in films. Details of the principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 57 and 58 respectively of this
annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the Year (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year, important events
occurred after the reporting period and an analysis of the likely
future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 13 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 29 to 50 of this annual report and note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, an analysis of the Group's performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Five-
year Financial Summary on page 148. Discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with the
Group's key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Company
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2021/2022 of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of HK$61,706,000.
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Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of ZE&EE Y3 MBS LB HESH:FESHN G S
the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial —FERFRMIET13 o
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 61 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2022, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders (2021: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7
December 2021 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented less than 30.0%
of the Group’s total revenue for the Year. The largest customer
amounted for 15.5% to the Group's total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented 66.4% of the Group’s total purchases and services
received. The largest supplier accounted for 24.6% of the Group’s
total purchases and services received.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial interests in the
share capital of any of the above major customers or suppliers of
the Group.

18 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

H§¢

%‘EW&26 ©

HBHNGREMHBR

f#t
FEBRAFEZFBEEIHFBRANTERS
blEZEREHmEHK -

AT AIH IR

22022568300 » KA E ] #9 kR FREE
T (20214 ) o

ARE M R

BRI R 2 B 5 BRI SR 2 TR B 2 A A 5382021
F1208TH RN IR (AR E) )
5> AABI A PO T S IR 558
RAE AR RILEREEE

BE - hENEOERE) EHES

FABDHHEEFANBADNAFERNMEREE
HERBRIARATMER EHES -

BhBEE

A AT Z MRS E RE B RN A AR AR
RERRRLOIRE HESADFRG 2 BEH
BHZINE

FERRRMERD

RAFE  AEEEBLRTREEBRASHER
ERBIATEI0.0% - ZRAZFFERERBU
AZ15.5% °

RAFE  AEEEAAHEHEGRESR
EARFBEEe O AERREE LI BRT
AREE 2 66.4% - RAMEEEAEBREER
BE AR TR AERE 2 24.6% ©

BEEM KBF REZETMBEANNER
AT BETRASNU LZERARRGEE DT
A LA EREAIERERAMHERRETZ
EiEm



Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen
Ms. Tam Sau Ying

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this annual
report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) and Ms. Chan
Sim Ling, Irene ("Ms. Irene Chan") shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“2022 AGM”) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2022 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during the
Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the Group
respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the

“Shares”)
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests
ERHR 515 #EmtE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Eligible beneficiary of a private
Alexander discretionary trust
(“Mr. Alex Yeung”) IWARBERZEERZTmA
HEEESE (THa%kE )

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert
Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment
Holdings”). AY Entertainment Holdings is held by Alto Trust
Limited in trust for a private discretionary trust of which Mr.
Alex Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.
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(B) Long position interests in associated (B) MiEE EBE 2 IF S S
corporations
(i) Ordinary shares (i) &EHidEkg

Ms. Fan Man Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
Seung, Vanessa HEFR En#EEA
("Ms. Vanessa Fan")
EHEL L (ERL))
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary of a 2,747,610,489 74.71
wEE REER private discretionary trust (Note)
MARIBEEZAEER & (Hfaz)
Emperor E Hotel - Ditto - 851,352,845 71.11
HERERE -FE- (Note)
(Hfzt)
Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,298,610,000 63.41
REBRKE -t - (Note)
(ffzz)
Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00
Bt —EL- (Note)
()

Note: Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J Kzt BREFRR RS RETHE BEEREE
and Ulferts are companies with their shares listed on BERBMEARG IR HA PR Lz A8 o
the Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately ZERMDBAZIENIMARSETRRE
owned by respective private discretionary trusts. Mr. BeolphEAZEMANEETZEE
Alex Yeung had deemed interests in the same shares by BEmAZ— BIRKRAEE AR RKR®K
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such o

private discretionary trusts.

(ii) Debentures (i) &S
Mr. Bryan Wong Emperor International Interest in a controlled HK$2,000,000
=g o S EE corporation 2,000,000 7T

RRIERNER 2

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors [ _F X EE SN > 122022668300 » EE
nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or short %ﬁzl&’z}ﬂ = “‘?—}BU\ %ﬁ"$’&ﬂ o ELE eI AE B
positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the 2@ (F&ERF 5 KHAEEGIEXVER) 2 FA1 5
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning {7 ~ 18Ef Hy{ﬁ&{ﬂ& SRR F RO KA o
of Part XV of the SFO).
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. No option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the end
of the Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their spouse or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 June 2022, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as
follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name

s
AY Entertainment Holdings

15 BIR SR

Capacity/Nature of interests

B3 HEtE

SR N
Alto Trust Limited
MARIBEFEZZFEA

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
("Dr. Albert Yeung")

S piE T (M51Et))

FAABIBIEEZBIILA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
(“Ms. Semon Luk”)

et (TERE))

Interest of spouse
B m

Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Alex Yeung had
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above. Ms. Semon Luk is
the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in DI Register.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in entertainment, media and
cultural development businesses. As at 30 June 2022, the interests
of the Directors in the business which are considered to compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

i. Mr. Alex Yeung, being one of the beneficiaries of a private
discretionary trust of which Dr. Albert Yeung is the founder
and settlor, is deemed to be interested in various private
companies under such trust which are also engaged in film
investment. Given that he cannot control the board of the
Company and the companies under such trust, the Directors
considered the Group’s interests are adequately safeguarded;
and

i. Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan had directorship
interests in private companies engaged in film investment. In
light of the size and dominance of the portfolio of the Group,
such disclosed deemed competing business is considered
immaterial.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly or
indirectly, in such transactions:

PR E PR BB & S > 10202268308 » EH
FABDRBTHRABLANEERMALIEEH
(IFEFHARBERSTHALR) FMERRKRRD N
TR PR R A E PR Em B
Frecik 2 (EAEmERA °
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FEFETSNFRE FRAEERER R
B EMRA 712022668308 ) EBENKAES
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EHETPERATIREZBmT ¢

i BEEFA—ERARIBETL BIELES
BIAKRMERTAN) ZEERZRAZ
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RENRB R BN RE AT AT
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EHmEEREDRE ; &
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(A) Continuing Connected Transactions — Master  (A) ST FERX 5 — B E K E m
Agreement on purchasing furniture products B 15 55 LA Be 8 BY 45 ffh % 8 2 58
and coupons and obtaining furniture R zEHETERMGZEL
procurement consultancy services (“Master
Furniture Agreement”)

Date: 29 June 2020 HER : 2020%6829H
Parties: (1) the Company; and HESP (1) &RE; &
(2) Ulferts (2) Bt
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Term: From 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023

Pursuant to the Master Furniture
Agreement, Ulferts and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Ulferts
Group”) shall (i) sell furniture products
and coupons and provide furniture
procurement related consultancy
services to members of the Group in
relation to the projects and investments,
or for own consumption by the Group
and (ii) provide such other types of
ancillary services in the ordinary course
of business of the Group.

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interest:

As Ulferts is indirectly controlled
by a private discretionary trust set
up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the
deemed substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung,
a Director, has deemed interest in
the transactions by virtue of being
one of the eligible beneficiaries of the
aforesaid trust.
Announcement: 29 June 2020
Aggregate
amounts:

During the Year, the amounts of
HK$2,111,000 and HK$122,000 were
paid to Ulferts Group for the purchase
of furniture products and coupons and
the obtaining of furniture procurement
consultancy services respectively.

(B) Continuing Connected Transaction — 2020
Master Leasing Agreement (“2020 MLA”)

Date: 3 December 2020
Parties: (1) The Company; and
(2) Emperor International
Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024
24 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE
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Nature:

Connected
relationship

and Directors’

interest:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amount:

2020 MLA sets out the framework of MH : 20205 AR TH E R #5138
the terms governing all existing and BHAIFHRRENREAR
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s) BIMMEETHAEYE
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding IHT&#@%(@%W&E’ZK
leasing of certain office properties or L) METZARTR
other properties (including cinema KEME EERS (T
and advertising space) from Emperor EXS)) WERER I
International and its subsidiaries with A E20219F6430H 1E3
aggregate tenancy annual caps being set 18 B ~ 8 220224 52023
for each of the 3 months ended 30 June F6830H /&2024%F3831
2021, the financial years ending 30 June HIE9ER It &M FEH
2022 and 2023; and 9 months ending EMREEFEE LR (T4878
31 March 2024 (“Aggregate Tenancy BEFELR-
Annual Caps”).
Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant RIE2020F B E 1755
members of the Group and the relevant AEEMERFMKE AT BERE
members of Emperor International may EEEMERKE QTR
from time to time enter into any definitive RIS ERBEERZET LT
leasing agreements in relation to any fAIEXEE TﬁE%(rIE_CfH
Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive B S EXEERE
Leasing Agreement(s)’). The terms of &R — ﬂyl’ﬂ%%ﬂ\
each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall WA ERIBIULE =T
be on normal commercial terms or on TAERZIFEN .J_LO 1I,5§
terms which are no less favorable to the AR EKATFEE T
Group than terms offered by independent E o EIRIEZEYEA
third parties. The terms and rental shall MERZ2EABEEMUE
be subject to arm’s length negotiation and HEKRSFAIRRZYEZ
be determined based on the condition ENTIBHESEE -
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.
As Emperor International is indirectly RAZERA R R AR EEEEAFZEL (R
controlled by a private discretionary trust BEEHD: WHEAXREIERE)N
set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the Iz—BMANBEFERE
deemed substantial shareholder of the S AL B SR
Company, it is a connected person of AIE14AE > HAKRTE Z
the Company under Chapter 14A of the REANLT - HBEE(ERE
Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung, a Director, =) AFTEES ﬁ*ﬁ*“‘"
has deemed interest in the transactions ANz — AW HRER Z
by virtue of being one of the eligible ERXZHERER
beneficiaries of the aforesaid trust.
3 December 2020 nE 20205%1283H
The aggregate amounts of the Tenancy “agE EAn S Ray H AR AL B
Transactions with Emperor International REIZHERZ 2 FELR
or its relevant members for the Year was RB8451,941,0008 7T ©
HK$1,941,000.
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(C) Major and Connected Transaction — Sale and
Purchase Agreement in relation to the
acquisition of entire equity interest in Tale
Success Limited and sale loan

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interest:

Announcement:

Circular:

26 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

31 January 2022

(1) Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise
Limited (“Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise”), a company indirectly
controlled by AY Entertainment
Holdings (the controlling Shareholder)

(2) Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited
(“Emperor Cinemas (China)”’), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

Emperor Cinemas (China) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
Agreement”) with Emperor Motion
Picture Enterprise, pursuant to which
Emperor Cinemas (China) conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest in Tale Success Limited (“Tale
Success”, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise) and the loan due from Tale
Success to Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise at an aggregate consideration
of HK$4.0. Tale Success and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in
cinema operation, which covered one
cinema in Hong Kong and eight cinemas
in mainland China as at the date of SP
Agreement.

Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the controlling
Shareholder and hence a connected
person of the Company, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung,
a Director, had deemed interest in the
transaction by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the private
discretionary trust which indirectly
controlled Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise.

31 January 2022

25 March 2022
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Independent 14 April 2022
Shareholders’
approval:

Completion: 22 April 2022

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as the "Purchase of furniture" and "Lease payments not
included in the measurement of Lease liabilities" for the Year as
disclosed in note 33 — "Transactions with Related Parties and
Other Members of the Emperor Group" to the consolidated financial
statements which constituted continuing connected transactions
(“CCTs") of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
all other transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the relevant requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected
transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter’) issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the CCTs and the
Auditor's Letter and have confirmed that these transactions have
been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);

BIIRgEHE ¢ 2022648148

TR -

BTIRBERE

PRERE MBS ERRINEEI3 - MR A TR 28
BERENRSZ I PIRAEEZ - TIRRERM]
IREFABEGEFEZHENR AHRE LT
RABLAASBR AR FERER S (TRHERM
BX5 ) WS Z A Bt 5 Th1RE
LtHRUBUAZTEREETAE BER - FE
BRRBILRRIEREZBAERS - FRFE
M LHRER FE T EHRAISE14AZ 2 HRIR
= o

2022F4822H

BERAIERARITERER 2 Z BN
1

AAR YN EEBRERE LY A
Z(EBERAREARISERI3000) ((E1E3]) 00 TE
SETSE R B S N ERI LU ERERE > 18
R E 5 R08) S 7405 [RE & 8 EHIRAIF It
SERIE S F (MR ) (TRBETE 1)
ERAEE Y S HERER S o

ZEENE LR EHARRIE 14A 561F S HEREBEE
Rt EhEAHENEERER S 2R/ RE
i ° 2~ B) B MBS P IR (AL BEMER AR B o

BIIFPITES 2R
1R9% EARRIE14A 551 B IENITEE (T

IMEMITES ) CERTERER S RZ BN
o WHERZERZ Y REER :

(1) REEEBEFEHPIL

2) B—RBEERAEEERERBERME)

and 5135 R
(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are  (3) J31ZBZEXZMIRER ZIERET > MR
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as SIERBATEET R SIE 2 BERE M m o
a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to the
financial performance of the Group and individual performance, ad
hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire at the 2022 AGM. A resolution for its
re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 27 September 2022
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company so as to ensure “Accountability,
Responsibility and Transparency” towards Shareholders,
stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the Year,
the Company had fully complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in the
interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its affairs
and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial
and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2022, the Board comprised seven Directors, four
of which are Executive Directors (including the Chairperson)
whilst three are INEDs. The Board considers that this composition
ensures a strong independent element with a balance of power and
influence between individual on the Board and an appropriate mix
of skill, knowledge, experience and diversity. The biographies of
the Directors are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this annual report
under the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”
section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Vanessa Fan has been appointed as the Chairperson of the
Board who provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at the board
meetings. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. The Executive Directors
are responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses. The Chairperson holds meeting without the presence
of Executive Directors with INEDs at least once a year.

The Board considers that current segregation of duties can ensure
a balance of power and authority and make the Board and the
operation of the Group function effectively.

ERERNA/ERRMREKFZEEER LU
BERARR FAABFNE REEUREER
HIEE - BEREBHRE) ZHE-

EEFORMLZIBER  LURFRET EmRAIKN
Tz EEEATR(REERTN) 2T
AIEX -RAFE > ZAREEEET EHRA
iR+ PUFrE 2 R EEATRIZFTATRNRSC -

S

EFEZABKER
RATNEFERE EFTEEEEREER
EE ITBBRENEEHEHRFERKE S
RERAEBZVHBREERER  MOIRERE
Bz R E IR Z il

EEFHEMN

R202266H30  EEEHERESF (B
TEE(EETIR) R=Z8BIIIERITES)HA
o BEEERAZERRFREBEERBENEILT
FOMEZENENREERLISEURES
A KREASTHHEG RESZRES
RAFERFI4IZICH EERSREEAEZE
FE|—Hfo

FRRESTHAS
ERITERZEREFEEIR AEREESF
GoEARBRAME (REWE)) 2B T
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> WEEF G RAERBAEAVIMEE -
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Independent Non-executive Directors

All INEDs are professionals with well recognized experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing field who contribute
impartial view and make independent judgment on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has been appointed for
an initial term of three years subject to early termination with notice
being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election under the Bye-laws
of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communication of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has been delegated powers and authorities of the
Board to carry out the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group, formulate business policies and make decision on key
business issues except the following matters as set out in a “Formal
schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board™:

e determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;
e approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

e approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions under Listing Rules;

e approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than those
transactions took place form time to time under the master
agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/Shareholders
(as the case may be)) under the Listing Rules; and

e approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

30 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAE]

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

BIFERITES
ERBICFRITESIIAIOERE Tt ESR
Bl EAREZE AR NERZEEAL T
RINEFEEZ LRI FHEREP IR RE
HBIUFIE - RES BT ERA=F > 1EH
RAERN—HEHBNIRFRILE -BIYIFATES
Z IR RIRBEA R B Z AR ERER A BE
e

AABERERBUIIFNTES ZBIUMERER
B RBERZLZEGHFLZFEER EFEN
2R EHRAES IMFFHEREBAREFIE
BIYAL ARTREEMBRARBENTREES
YRR BIEESIBIBI FRITEFE 2 817

RETEER

BB RARBNTEZES (HESEZMA
HITESPER) RE TERESFERTRIK
B LWETAEEZAEEERZE HIEXE
BRR WMEBEFERFHRE HIEE
EFERAERHESFEREZFBEZIENAES
TP T EIEFFIN

s BEAEEZBERIRRE

s WEFERDTHEEURVBRS ;
s ERSEZRMREZEMDIK

o HUERBE EHRRAENASEAERIBENZ

o HUETIE EMRBABETZATAMRBZA
H .

=

o HELTRAEBETZIFHRREERS, F
HRFHEMERS (REBEERESE KRE
(RIBERTME) HEZ RIBETRFEIT 2
2N 5 &

s WERRBZETBEAREERMESTEITC



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure
of equity and business interest in the Group and such induction
materials will also be provided to newly appointed Directors
shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors have
been updated on the latest developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to
assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Code
Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending e-seminars/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company:—

Name of Directors BEMY

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa PER ¢ Chogun
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander I EESR
Mr. Wong Chi Fai mSIERE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes FFmHET 2+
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene [EREEE R o
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen Al st d
Ms. Tam Sau Ying BERL LT

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors.

EFZHE - XBEEXERE

FTEESEICERHEREEESFZRERS
- BRAREFZHAEN R REREH
RiEREB D 2 BERERTESIER AR
MEBRNMTERNMEEFTEEEAEFTREN
ANARETURM -FIAESIEEN LHRA
REMBRABERE 2 &HME R UEFRE
THERERNBRENRFEXEAETRZE
Ho-BFEERTREF FEFUEEEBRT
REEERESRBUEEER  BRHAAT
i LBk SRITENARENEE-

EEED RSEBTEEEATIRNERES
Bl FRAMRXEC.LMF R AFE » FEET
EAEBLERR T TEE XS FHES
BRI EBEZME2HEEEE XL R LERK
BRI S 2 MG s B AR B A A BiR (534S
#%

Topics on training covered
FrifE Z il =8

(1) corporate governance
TEEAR

2 regulatory
B

(3) finance
75

(4) industry-specific
1TZEAERE

SEgNERZR%
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the Year is

set out below:

EFZHEBRRERBZA
RAFEEELEEHZERNT ;

No. of meetings attended/held

HEEE/ BTEERY
Corporate
Remuneration ~ Nomination Governance Executive General

Name of Directors Board Audit Committee  Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ST S BREEE HWESE RRZEE ©GXERZEY HOZEE REAE
Executive Directors
HiTES
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 1) 6/6 - - il 1n 6/6 212
SEeE L (rE )
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 6/6 - - - - 6/6 2/2
PG e
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 6/6 - 1N - - 6/6 212
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 6/6 - - - - 6/6 212
FRf L
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFHITES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 6/6 33 - - 1n - 2/2
[EYEChe
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 2) 6/6 33 il 1N - - 2/2
g (M32)
Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Note 3) 6/6 33 11 11 - - 212
EBRL L (ME3)
Total number of meeting(s) held: 6 3 1 1 1 6 2
BrgEzAY.

Notes: Btat -

1. Chairperson of the Board, Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and 1. BEEZ HPITLES REEZEShTCEETARZETER

Corporate Governance Committee
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee 2. BREEGERFE
3. Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 3. FINEESERE

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with

code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and is
satisfied that each Director had been spending sufficient time in

performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

RAFE  BREFEERTRIZFRIIEXEC.2.7
% TRABIFRITEFRIT—IRBENTE
FEHFENGE-

EESCERSEFRITHHARSNEEF
ZEBR IR ARAFESUERIIEMH RSN
RrfEE TN 2 RS
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and key officers of the company secretarial
team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well as all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting agenda
is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation with other
Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the Directors
at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board papers
and related materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
and relevant committee members at least 3 days before each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting (on other agreed
period) to enable the Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with
draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by the
Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable time
with reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on
the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her
associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be counted
in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs, who, and
whose close associates, have no material interest in the transaction
are present at that Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees
are given to the respective members of these Committees. Details
of the Board Committees as at 30 June 2022 are set out below:
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Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Alex Yeung, Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms.
Shirley Percy Hughes. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and making
decision (including entering into transactions) on matters
relating to the management and day-to-day operations of
the Group; (b) making and reviewing corporate/financial/
treasury planning, investment and operation strategy of the
Group; (c) discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made by or on
behalf of the Group; (d) approving transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempted connected transactions
and non-exempted continuing connected transactions took
place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the case
may be) under the Listing Rules; and (e) having all power
and authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted
by the Board from time to time.

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho
Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Irene Chan and
Ms. Tam Sau Ying.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing
and monitoring the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c) approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;
and (d) reviewing financial information and overseeing the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 June 2021 (“Previous Year’) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31 December 2021;

34
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

WMITEE G (R2015F1528H-17)
WTLESTHE2BHTESEN Btk
(ZEZEFE) BEE -BRERFRETL
ToHMTEREGZTEHSA(MELRER
EENHAEEESHBEREEBBERR
EHRTE (BIEETTRS) ; (b)HIE Migst s
EEZ X UM ERE  REREE
IRES (o)t R EEAAER A RAE
BEHIEZ M EE IR R REES ;5 (d)
HAER 5 @%m%}fﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁuzﬁ%ﬁﬁ“
G ERCHERSREHEERTE RE
(%Ela/ﬂﬁ'ﬁm)%tt,ﬁzmmmﬂ%ﬁﬁzaﬁ
RRTERERS, ke)EEEES A
%ﬁ&?ﬂ%)’IE%$§/T\B%?%WZF%§%
EEAEMHEEEREZEBZEAEE
STEIRIFTEHIEEHERBESSFAEZSE
TEBRAN 0

BZZBE (1F1998F1254H41z)
BEZEZEEH-RBIUIFNTESMEN 2
RAEERLSE (ZEEEF) ML T RE
(EEScent

ENEZEGHERESE EH‘&W&“%@ITEA%FQFE&
FATEUEER - BZEEETEE T ()5
L EMEERE %5’#%@%&%%@%&%
BR; (b)i@sy R EE NS EED 2 B I M LU
RBEZEFZEEERBHMN ; (H/EINE
F%ﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁzﬁiHiE’zéﬁe—ﬂaﬁA; R (d)E RS

SR R EREMHREGE BREERA
EERAL o

BENEZEGNAFERTZ TEREHIW

7.1

HEIREMBAB R SINEZE
BB AR RAEEMEANZT
STEURIRR A BB Z B RS > LU 73 BB
E2021F6R30A LM BEE( LEF
B 2FEERSVHRERREE2021
FI2A318LERNER 2GR E M
MR EEE R AT ;



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group during the Previous
Year;

ii. performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the annual general meeting held on 2
December 2021 (2021 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plan for the Previous Year, reviewed
the independence of external auditor and approved its
engagement.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan Wong,
being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on (a)
the Company’s policies and structure of all the remuneration
of Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration packages for
individual Executive Directors and senior management. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation to
the Board; and

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
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packages.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee),
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ho Tat Kuen and Ms.
Tam Sau Ying, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) reviewing the Nomination Policy for the nomination
of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and identifying potential
candidates for directorship; (d) assessing the independence
of INEDs; (e) reviewing the time commitment of each
Director in performing his/her responsibilities; and (f) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time
committed in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2021 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives to the business nature of the Company. Selection
of candidates on the Board is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
will also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director that will bring to the Board against the
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.
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Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination Policy of the
Group which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets
out the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board; (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at general
meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of
new Director.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August
2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of four members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan
(Chairperson of the Committee), being the Chairperson of the
Board, Ms. Irene Chan, being an INED, a representative of
company secretarial function and a representative of finance
and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG Committee
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties of
the CG Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”)
and making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors and
relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by the
Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board policy
and procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising the
Board on general duties and obligations of Directors and good
corporate governance issues, and has facilitated induction and
professional development of the Directors. She has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the Company
Secretary had duly complied with the relevant training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry to
all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The management has
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
financial statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects as
at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements were
prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board on the
consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before it for
approval. The auditor of the Company had made a statement about
their reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor's Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are updated regularly with the primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).

A. Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Control Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
e  safeguarding assets;

*  ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports;

e  promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws; and

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in its principal
subsidiaries of the Company for the Year.

B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

e responsible for the overall Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

e oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

e ensure the presence of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;
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define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
(including the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risks) that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate the
Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have effective
Control Systems. This discussion also includes
the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit, financial
reporting function and of those relating to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external
environment;

consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by internal and external auditors and
make recommendations to the Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the
auditors.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and report
to the Audit Committee for its review.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

40

design, implement and monitor the Control Systems
properly and ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out audit checking on sample basis and
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls;

alert the management on the audit findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the
internal controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit and agreed action
plans to the Audit Committee and the Board on
regular basis.

(2) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for
the attention of the Board. The Board shall make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the CG
Committee as delegated by the Board in order to
ensure the Company is in compliance with all the
applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations; and
to keep up on any legal developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
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all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules FRAURIREIEE
and disclosure requirements;
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Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. Such arrangement will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee which ensures
that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedures establishes the
general framework for combating crime against
money laundering and financing of terrorism. It
provides guideline to prevent the Group’s employees
and clients/customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors
from being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employees’ reference.

(3) Operational Control
The management is responsible for analysing the control
environment, identifying risks pertaining thereto, and
implementing various controls therein as follows:

42

Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control Systems
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Control Systems, then provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses
the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope
and findings of the review on the Control Systems
will be reported to the Audit Committee annually;

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records that
are in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication;

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Group’s business such as inventory, products and
customer relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system, under
which permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on regular
basis;
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v. Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts the management promptly of any deviations.
Benchmarking with historical database and
comparisons with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities;

vi. Safeguarding of assets: Regular physical count
of inventories, daily cash, movie vouchers and
ticket exchange coupons for each cinema with
reconciliation of report generated from the ticketing
system are performed by Finance and Accounts
Department and reviewed by Internal Audit
Department; and

vii. Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of cinema business segment to
ensure the service quality.

(4) Financial Control

i. Policies, procedures and systems are in place to
ensure proper accounting records are maintained
which provide complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information;

i. Financial budget and forecast of cinema operation
is prepared and reviewed regularly to ensure any
action can be taken to mitigate any changes in
conditions and market accordingly;

ii. Financial management reports are provided to
all Directors and senior management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

iv. Operational reports on revenue, debtors’ ageing
and internal financial analysis are prepared to
the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s operation
performance;

v. Available fund report and cash flow forecast are
reviewed to monitor the cash flows of the Group; and

vi. Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

C. Review of Internal Control

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal Audit
Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans should be reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board on timely basis.
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D. Risk Management

(1)

@)

44

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk identification,
evaluation, management and control measures.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and the management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination — The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

¢ Risk mitigation — The management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood,
velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring — It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks.

* Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is at
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:
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1. Occurrence of disaster events:

“Act of God”, fire, natural disasters (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as Covid-19, SARS, Ebola
or Avian Flu happening could have adversely effect
on the Group’s business and reputation.

Ensure all safety measures as required by
the governments in different jurisdictions such
as mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Malaysia are fully implemented.

Keep update on development of disaster events
and follow the instructions and guidances given
by the local governments so as mitigate the
impact of the events to the Group.

Fire-proof material is used for cinema’s
renovation, exit lighting signboards, escape
route and fire extinguishers are put in a proper
place in the Group’s cinemas.

Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our
staff in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and
a quick reference guide for departments’ use
in order to assist the Group to respond and
recover from these disasters quickly.

2. Competition in China theatrical market:

There is intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theaters
in mainland China as well as internet broadcasting
platform becoming more popular, especially with 5G.
No assurance that demand in the film screening will
increase in line with or outpace the supply of new
cinemas.

Dedicate to provide a premium theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinemas
with the advanced visual and audio technology
to sustain its competitiveness.
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e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social
media platforms from time to time in order to
attract more audiences.

o Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services.

e Before commencement of a new site, market
analysis and projections are prepared by
Business Development Team and assessed by
Operation Team and the management.

e Diversify film exhibition business in different
markets like mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia.

Competition in entertainment business:

Film exhibition business is highly competitive as it is
subject to the availability and popularity of alternative
form of entertainment. There is no assurance that
the Group will sustain its competitiveness in the
entertainment industry successfully.

e  Periodically review and adjust the business
strategic plans to cope with the competition.

e Diversify the Group’s entertainment business
and expand its film exhibition business in due
course.

Inherent risk on entertainment business:

Entertainment business including cinema operation
is inherently risky since it relies on the economic
success of any motion picture and the revenues
generated from this business depend primarily on
each film’s public acceptance and its popularity,
which cannot be predicted with certainty.

e Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences and adjust
business strategic plans to cope with these
changes.

Cinema location and rental expenses:
Cinema rental expense is always a key cost
component of the Group. A significant fluctuation of
cinema rents may affect the Group’s profitability.

* Rental negotiation with landlord by senior
management to ensure the rental costs are
within budget.
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Explore cinema locations with good potential
at reasonable level, for instance, in December
2021, the Group signed an agreement in
relation to the leasing of cinema at Shenzhen
Bantian.

Perform profit forecast to assess its financial
viability.

Negotiate with landlords for granting rent
concessions during the period of Covid-19
pandemic.

6. Legal and regulatory changes:

Cinema operation is subject to approvals from
various government bureaus and is required
to obtain relevant licences before business
commencement. Cinemas need to comply with laws
and regulations in an ongoing basis during operation.
Governments may order cinemas to close under
exceptional situation. Failure to comply with the
relevant rules and regulations will have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s operation and image.

Stay alert on the new development of the
government policies, practices, relevant laws
and regulations in different countries and make
timely response thereto, including change of the
Group’s existing strategies or policies.

Legal advice is sought (if required) to ensure
that all requisite licences and approvals are
obtained.

Training for the operation units so as to increase
their awareness of the new developments so
that they can be prepared and respond to the
new developments.

Review policies and practices on compliance
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution
to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements
for business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but
not limited to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and
the Bye-laws of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
and/or potential investors mainly in the following ways: (i) the
holding of annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special general
meetings, if any, which may be convened for specific purposes
which provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases providing updated information
of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the Group
on the Company’s website at https://www.EmpCulture.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participating in
investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholder and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of
this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Chairperson of the 2021 AGM and the chairman/
members of the Board Committees and the external auditor
were available at the 2021 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the procedures for
conducting a poll during the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:
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Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary,
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be
convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them may themselves convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than 6 weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a date 6
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to
the Investor Relations Department of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Ernst &
Young is independent and had recommended the Board to re-
appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2022 AGM. During the
Year, Emst & Young has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it
by the Group is set out as follows:

Service rendered BiRMZ IR
Statutory audit EEBIZ
Non-audit services JETIZARTS

RBALBEES
RERBALZBESZRFIRFATELE
o

AREREH
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REARABDEARTZFRIBR - REZHAh
BHAAALEREEFFHIIFEL
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28 o
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BEZZEEREREERZERBRS REE
ZEENZBINE  UEREZGEEMHRETER
P EEMERBENE - BEREEGZMERD
KRB Z LML K BT ENS AT BB ILA L
WEZREFGR0202FRRBFAG LEHME
FEEB/RAB Z LN AR FE > LKG5THM
FHFTE DA EERHEZIRT A TIEFEIZR
o MAEEDN AT RZMEHIIWMT :

Fees paid/payable
Bfd &R
HK$’000

TET
1,920

900

— Preparation of Accountant's Report in respect of — gt = /5 WS BIZEE 4 G sHET RS

acquisition of Target Group from Vendor
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 EE RS

EY::

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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B ZBENR S
(REREZMET ZBRAE])

=

BER

TN ESTEFEIATEEEVLEE
EEERATD(E&RE) REMBAT(TE&E
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

section of our report,

Eﬁﬁé’f’/‘%lﬁ (&

RTBEBET T ARS ZHEBZR SR
ﬁ%ZEEﬂ% PSR BIEREESEE
HRAR S E - B KITHIBZ TFEENT
AEE LGRS B RREAER R AR R MR
STRBEZIZF - ATHITERIEFIGER 21
EE TN EIEPIAITIIER  SBNZ GRS
BRERBZERREHT AR

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEBELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTNBZMAEERRERER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

ME - BB RI[EUREREEEZRETE

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU
Assets”) with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$555,973,000 and HK$1,001,020,000, respectively.
PR2022F6 8300 EEEYE HERRE(HE-
e kRE) UEREEE ((EREEE)) 2REE
2 R1#9#5555,973,000%87c%1,001,020,00078 7T °

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for PP&E and ROU Assets at the end
of each reporting period and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amounts of the respective
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
to which the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate
and whether the respective recoverable amounts of the
CGUs or groups of CGUs are less than their respective
carrying amounts. As at 30 June 2022, the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs have been determined
by management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs
and applying respective discount rates which reflect risks
relating to the respective CGUs.
EEENRZSREPRKNEETRAETRVEMEZ > 57
EE RBERRBEUREREEEESEEEMBEIE
PR BEDBEBTHESYE - HBRREURER
REEFRzRRELBU(IREELEEM ) SRS
ELBEMUMERNZPINEIREE UREREeEL BT
TEFBAAAERAZIREEEESENKES B
EEETE 120229068300 EREEF B Z AT
CEEHAEEBENKBRREELBUNFERSE
mEEAUKRRMREREESBAMEREERZBIREN
EREESEETE -

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
of PP&E and ROU Assets. The key procedures we
performed on evaluating the methodology, assumptions
and estimates used in the impairment assessment
included, inter alia, the following:
FITHL T EEEHY R KB RR ﬁu&@%%ﬁé
ZREFHE o AT MG Z Z REEPTA H A R&
&ﬁ%ﬁﬁm%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%@ﬂﬁ%@uT%
15 .

e we assessed the key assumptions and estimates
used in management’s discounted cash flow
projections, including, inter alia, budgeted/forecasted
revenue and results of operations, growth rates and
discount rates;

FATHME TR EEERRRERETERAPEHAZE
RERSR R B1F (HPERE) BEFERARA K
GG BRERAIRE ;

e we obtained an understanding of the current and
expected future developments of the respective
CGUs and factors that might affect key assumptions
and estimates of the respective cash flow
projections and discount rates applied;

T TR TN ESREESBAUEA KTEAREKN
EBRIBN P ESRERETRRRBMRE MG
STHREE > MR BREANAIRE ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 EE RS

Key audit matters (continueq)

Key audit matter

HEELEE

REZEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FINEZMAEERARERER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

ME BB RI[EUREAEEEZRBENE (&

The impairment testing of PP&E and ROU Assets
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
PP&E and ROU Assets and related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The outcome
of impairment assessment could vary significantly if
different assumptions and estimates were applied.

ME - -HEARREUARGERESEZREHEZEE
FE R R ~ 5t R IRER > RS~ A5t RBRG T E
REMBRERPYE - RERREUAREREEENS
R AR EE o IR AR RER K fhi5t > BUEST
EHERAIEEERAER

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant accounting
judgements and estimates required in determining the
recoverable amounts.

MR EREGRZHRER BEEIWESHEFTEZER
BRGHHERAL S AT IR NN EEEE-

The related disclosures about significant accounting
judgements and estimates and information about
impairment of PP&E and ROU Assets are included
in notes 3, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

MHRIE R G 5T HIER Kb 5T DU 2 ~ 128 Re s s LA R A
BREEZ HEBHZKREE D ENGEMHRE
MIzE3 ~ 135214

we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used and
certain key assumptions and estimates made by
management, including, inter alia, the specific
discount rates and growth rates applicable to the
respective CGUs, with reference to market and
other relevant information; and
FITABEEER B TIT2E RIS REMERE
BTG EIRE T AN A AU R ATEL S THR R
wR AL B (HREE) BEMRERBANE
REELBUZIEBRE &

we assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

RTHE TR BERRPERRENT RS
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 EE RS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

REETMBRAAEMBRERZEME

RTWER BHGAGHBRRERRES A FE
R EREFE AR M E MBI E R R R A AT 512
fReg > WA BREATRRE Z LIRS - 17
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ANLTE& LSRR EREE-

GEFREESKTFIRE  EFREFRERRER
B ERETHNE R EE—ERERRAFE
Ry A8 SE 3L IR - A SRR I P] LA EREFEEERR S [E »
MR AEFRHHCMBIBNERIERAIEZERS
MR ERERBZEFE M B IRRFAFLAY
AOBRTE > BB RABYEEERRIL AT RARFE K ©

FTRBEERESHENETEZNIEZ— =2
BREXEAE TRESZERETRTEEIRRE
RREZ o ATTR
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REERME A E KRR R R
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MERTBLRENEZER BUIFSE
H BSEENABEFINEREERER

o HEFTRESHERESIEE  UNESFIF
EREsHE St AR ERS G -

s HESRAFECESERNGEMEFH
fihom o IRIBFTEMNBIZER  BERTF
HEHRBEYIERERNERTEEN  1Em
PJREENY EEENEEKEENELES
REEE o HATTRBB/FEERTEEN A
BRBERHMRENRFERE LIRSS
MBRETPRERKE - REBEBIKRET
B AATRESERFEREER A7
s 2 AR S B LEPREUS SRR

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our o RT kR EIEN B RO AEE =&
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may B R A1 4 AR o
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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BY 2B E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

27 September 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERER

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE

REVENUE A 5 306,713 192,908
Cost of sales HE WA (127,717) (81,736)
Gross profit EF 178,996 111,172
Other income and gains H AW A K W 6 76,124 11,942
Selling, marketing and other cinema THE ~ HIGHEE R EMERT

operating expenses EERS (313,811) (248,867)
General and administrative expenses — R AT (53,709) (39,630)
Other expenses, net Hithasz /3% (39,738) (1,594)
Finance costs TSRS 8 (62,946) (61, 101)
Share of loss of a joint venture Elih—EaEhEESR (3,318)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREE SIS 7 (218,402) (228,078)
Income tax expense PSR 1 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ERERSIE (218,402) (228,078)
Attributable to: P& -

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=DN (201,379) (219,775)

Non-controlling interests JEITERS R (17,023) (8,303)

(218,402) (228,078)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO &AEI&ERITHE AEW

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF SkEE

THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HA RS 12 LR HK$(0.07)38 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEWER

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

FERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H 12 @i (§518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that

RAREBRE R EA DB ERm A

may be reclassified to profit or loss in P EWE(E51R) -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEB 2 ERERE
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FEZEBREE
THE YEAR

Attributable to: &1
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ= DN
Non-controlling interests JEIER R
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(218,402) (228,078)

(1,383)

(219,785) (204,522)

(203,151) (196,807)
(16,634) (7,715)

(219,785) (204,522)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

30 June 2022 20224F6H30H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LY ER L YEd 13 555,973 555,590
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,001,020 1,016,049
Prepayments, deposits and other SN e =Nl EN

receivables 19 60,431 43,552
Investment in a joint venture R—EaEtEIKRE 15 13,432 -
Total non-current assets JERENE EARE 1,630,856 1,615,191
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =78 17 2,989 1,751
Trade receivables B SR 18 17,653 8,065
Prepayments, deposits and other SN =Nl EN

receivables 19 34,443 38,393
Financial assets at fair value through profit IZ/A BEst ABH 2 SHEE

or loss 16 5,850 5,489
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIBEEEY 20 117,412 56,858
Total current assets REBEEEE 178,347 110,556
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREEE
Trade payables, other payables and B EMAM EtEA R R ES

accruals =932 21 117,160 67,888
Contract liabilities GHEE 22 43,102 19,332
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 2 $R1T R EMEES 23 20,018 7,008
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 183,083 94,777
Amounts due to related companies ERAEABRIA 33(b) 3,249 10,122
Amount due to a joint venture R —MEaEhERE 33(c) 250 -
Amount due to non-controlling interests  FE{ IFIZE R AE 5 R IE 33(d) 70,225 -
Total current liabilities B BEEE 437,087 199,127
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEEIPEE (258,740) (88,571)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERREERE

LIABILITIES 1,372,116 1,526,620
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBAE
Provisions B 24 64,695 46,211
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 2 $R1T R EMEE 23 452,476 282,365
Lease liabilities HEaRA 14 1,186,643 1,101,430
Amount due to non-controlling interests  FE{ IFIZE R AE 5 =R IE 33(e) - 43,589
Total non-current liabilities JERENEELEEE 1,703,814 1,473,595
Net assets/(liabilities) EEHE(BEFR) (331,698) 53,025
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

30 June 2022 20224F6H30H

EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners of the BATIEE AELEDS

parent
Issued capital BT 32,133
Reserves (Eis] (265,585)

(233,452)
Non-controlling interests FEIERG (98,246)
Total equity RS 4REE (331,698)
Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Wong Chi Fai
SBEE w=EHE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESE HITESE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEX

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022FE6830HLEFE

A1 Jly 2020 RANERIA RIB I s (15369 C o bMS)  MMEB (6I) 25T
Loss for the year EEBE - - - - - - (219775 (219,775) (8.303)  (228,078)
Other comprehensive income FE E 2 ElE ©

for the year:

Exchange diferenceson ~ BEEINER 2
translaton of foreign ERED

operations - - - - 22,968 - - 22,968 588 23,556
Total comprehensive income/ FE2EE /(5188
(loss| for the year B - - - - 22,968 - (19775 (196,807) (175 (204522)
At 30 June 2021 RULECER 218 91283 50" 58658 7599 fo QUM %866 (43841) 53025
At 1 July 2021 RAETALR 218 912843 (014417) %6866  (43841) 53,025
Loss for the year FEFE - - (201379)  (201379)  (17023)  (218402)

Othercomprehensive ~ EEEMAE
incomef{oss) for he year: W% /(5:8):
Exchange diferences on ~ EENNER Y

translaton of foreign ERER

operations (1,772) (1,772) 389 (1,383)
Total comprehensive loss for £E2FEEEE

the year (1,77) QU379 (20815 (16638  (219785)
Busingss combination under £EESITzEBAH 30

common control (120,257) (120257) ~ (89,009)  (209,266)
Change in ownership interest 1B A BFTA iR

of subsidries 28 : : (6910) -0 512 43
AL30 une 2022 RA0E6RE RN o1 BES SR (IS (LHSTF (335  (98246) (31699

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves/(debit *  ZEEHERENGETHBINIRZGEHE (0K
reserves) of HK$(265,585,000) (2021: HK$64,733,000) in the A1) (265,585,000) 7 75 (202145 164,733,000/ 7T) °
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KERETHZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax: PRAQATESIE - (218,402) (228,078)
Adjustments for: FHEIER
Finance costs U0 %:iN 8 62,946 61,101
Interest income FEUA 6 (2,848) (1,501)
Share of loss of a joint venture FEE—EEaEhEsIE 3,318 -
Covid-19-related rent concessions from R B HE A 2 #7d %5 & 1518
lessors RARTE SR 14 (49,354) (32,761)
Fair value gain of financial assets at fair AR BEFTABRZ TRE
value through profit or loss, net EZANBERGEFE 7 (1,011) (68)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y B REREITE
equipment 7 89,637 72,913
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBEEZINE 7 117,838 106,940
Gain on lease modifications AEETZ WG 6 (66,258) -
Impairment of trade receivables B2 KR ZRE 7 = 1,662
Impairment of property, plant and ME B RREZBE
equipment 7 11,077 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 7 29,672 -
(23,385) (19,792)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories E&ERL,(8m) (192) 492
Increase in trade receivables B 5 WIS N (8,034) (7,186)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, B R e K H M E W
deposits and other receivables b (3E00) 8,435 (3,422)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value QAR EETAEBGDZSREE
through profit or loss A 650 1,709
Increase in trade payables, other payables B 5 F& {x 7 ~ ELfth F& {1 7 % FE 51
and accruals BRI 16,139 13,222
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEMN 5,427 2,724
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  FE{TREEA S FIEE N, GEiZL)
related companies (6,873) 10,122
Net cash flows used in operating ARRE EEZIREREFEE
activities (7,833) (2,131)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUFIE 77 74
Purchase of items of property, plant and &S 1423 KR HTEH
equipment (56,528) (73,188)
Business combination under common HEEZEF T2 EBEH
control 30 8,903 -
Advance of loan to a joint venture mH—EaEPEREER (16,500) -
Net cash flows used in investing ARRE TS ZIREREFEE
activities (64,048) (73,114)
62 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAE]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEZBZHRERE
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of advances from related BIERAERTZEBM
companies

New bank loan ERITEM

Other loan raised FrEEEMER

Repayment of other loan BIEHMENR

Principal portion of lease payments HENRAEED

Interest portion of lease payments AENMHAEE D

Interest paid BFE

Net cash flows from financing activities R ERIE ZF 2 W& R EF%E

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&EKIR&SEEYILINFEE
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the FYzRERIREEZEY
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EZREiE > 8/ 2528
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT H&ZR&EKREZEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERREEBYMEEDIR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTEE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRQE
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 fE%R

13,000
202,000
(31,889)
(36,446)

(5,091)

(8,491)

133,083

61,202

56,858

(648)

117,412

117,412

(3,709)
5,000
131,000
(20,214)

(22,234)
(68)

89,775

14,530
40,625

1,703

56,858

56,858
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022 & E2022F6H30BLEFE

1.

64

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March 1992 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of operation is located at 28th Floor, Emperor Group
Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in investment of securities. During the year,
the Group was primarily involved in the following principal
activities:

e  cinema operation
* investments in films

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor Culture
Holdings”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI").

In the opinion of the directors, Albert Yeung Entertainment
Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment Holdings”), which
was incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate holding company
of the Company, and AY Entertainment Holdings is wholly-
owned by Alto Trust Limited, being the trustee of Albert Yeung
Entertainment Discretionary Trust, a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”).

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, all
companies directly or indirectly controlled by respective private
discretionary trusts set up by Dr. Albert Yeung other than the
Group are collectively referred to as the “Emperor Group” and
AY Entertainment Holdings and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “AY Entertainment Holdings Group”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AT REEREK (&

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries BB AR ZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as NABIETENBATIZFBEWT .
follows:

Emperor Cinemas Group Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
(Formerly known as Emperor Cinema ~ RBE% S IESH RERR
Group Limited)

REFERARAT
(REREBYIEEARAT)

Emperor Cinema Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Cinema operation
REEXHEEARAT &8 1% BlREE
Emperor Cinemas Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Cinema operation
HEBYHARAT X 1% BlREE
Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
H2EX (TE) BRAT) A 2B REER
Emperor Cinemas (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Cinema operation
H2EXI (2P BRAR) ety 2500027 BREE
Emperor Cinemas (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. ~ Malaysia MYR100,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(Note (v)) ERAD 100000ERALLE EilreiE
H2EY (FRAED) BRAT
(i)
Goldcore Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
RRRUEE 17 REER
Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Film investments
ERARAT &8 IEn ERE
Tale Success Limited BVI Uss$2 - 100% Investment holding
EREUEHE JESTr REER
Emperor Cinemas (Anhui) Company People’s Republic RMB32,800,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) of China (PRC")/ AE#32,800,0007 Bl
HETH (ZH) BRAF Mainland China
(H2()R(iv) FEE \ R
(Tehid)) /B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #EE2022F6H30HIEEE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABIREEEK (&

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBARZER (&
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AT ETEMRBABTIZEFIEWNT & (&)

follows: (continued)

Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company PRC/Mainland RMB95,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) China (Note (i) BlnEE
HEBFH 00 BRAT R /TR AR AERH95,000,0007
(MR (i) (Wi (i)

Emperor Cinemas (Chongging) Company ~ PRC/Mainland RMB33,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) China AEH33,000,0007T BlngiE
HEBTY (ER) BRAT R/ HEIARE
(e (&)

Emperor Cinemas (Chengdu) Company ~ PRC/Mainland RMB23,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) China NE#23500,0007 BlnEE
HEEX () BRAT) R EVEN S
(Mt ()Kiv)

Emperor Cinemas (Shenyang) Company ~ PRC/Mainland RMB15,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) China 15,500,007 BlngE
H2EF MR (85 BRAT /AR
(Ht2 ()R (i)

Emperor UA Cinemas Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 70% Investment holding
(‘Emperor UA") iy 1087 BER
HRRBETHARAT (RERE))

Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong) PRC/Mainland RMB110,000,000 - 70% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes (i) and (iv)) China (Note (i) BlnEiE
H2REN (BR) BRAT HhE/RE AR 110,000,007
(W& (i) (e (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2022 & ZE2022F6H30BLEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:
(i)  These are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

(i) The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited including its branches
comprising of Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited
(Shenzhen Futian Branch) (E 2B & (IER) SR 255
f@HE2A 7)), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited
(Shenzhen Branch) (R 2B & W (It R) BR A FI 22
B)), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Ganzhou
Branch) (REB & (ER) BIRAREMNDAE]) and Emperor
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Shenzhen Baoan Branch)
(HEBRH (LR BERABRIIEZHAF).

(iii) The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor UA
Cinemas (Guangdong) Company Limited including its branches
comprising of Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong) Company
Limited (Foshan Nanhai Branch) (EE2BRE Xz (E®R) AR
AT L EDAT), Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong)
Company Limited (Shanghai Honggiao Branch) (3 22 &£ 5
PR(E®R) BRA AR L/EIEDAF), Emperor UA Cinemas
(Guangdong) Company Limited (Zhuhai Gongbei Branch)
(REREER(ER) BRABKEHIES A E), Emperor
UA Cinemas (Guangdong) Company Limited (Foshan
Chancheng Branch) (2 2R & (EER) B R AT G LB D
‘A&]), Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong) Company Limited
(Shanghai Hongkou Branch) (B2 & fr (BR) BRAE L
JEMIO73/AE]), Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong) Company
Limited (Shenzhen Futian Branch) (2R E &3 (FEE) AR
‘AEFYIEHESAE) and Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong)
Company Limited (Chengdu Gaoxin Branch) (3 212 £ &% (&
B) BIRABIMEBEMDAT).

(iv) The English names of these entities registered in the PRC are
directly translated from their Chinese names as they do not
register any official English names.

(v) The Chinese name is for identification purpose only.

During the year, the Group entered into a business combination
under common control (“common control combination”),
involving Tale Success Limited and its subsidiaries, further
details of which are included in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. As a result of the common control
combination, the Group's interest in Emperor Cinema (Anhui)
Company Limited has been increased from 55% to 100%.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group, or are significant investment holding companies of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

1. RAIKREREN (/&
BRMBATIZEN (&)

Hiaz -

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ZERBA/NFERIIZAREEAT

ZEEEHAE2BEZHOLR) BRATF (B1EH
2B IR ARABRYIEHD AE) 5
SBEXWOLR) BRATRIIDAE HEE
W OER) BRARBEMN D AB R AL B
OER) BRABRINELZDRE) ZsEMEZ -

ZEREHL2REXZ R (ER) ARAE (B
REREEHR(ER) BRATHLUREED A
B HEREBXMR(ER) BRAE LEIIE

+
I
&

DAEHERET IR (ER) ARATHKEH
EPRABHERBEZ IR (ER) BRABHU
B RAE) HEREER(ER) BRAR L
BIIONAE S BREREF R (ER) BRAT
RYFEHAD AR RREEBRBER G (BER) BRERQ
BIREEH N AR 2 MEL -

ARZERPEFZRz R EZFMEFER
BXER AEKREZ A EBIHRREZH
XHBEERIEMAR o

X A AR o

RAEFE AEBETHRZEN T Z2EH
Gt (THEEZEFIGH ) )P KTale Success
Limited R EftBAE > HE—TFHBEEHN

VA=PAN
oy =

FAFSRAR M EE30 » AR HEHEERI &5

AEBNRREETH (ZH) BRAB Z#
m B H55%18 INZE100% ©

EERNN LRAVIZARBEMBRARLE
EREFTERENENAEREEFEEAN
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RAB-EFERA RHEAMMBAB 255
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. 148 %

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial assets which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“Covid-19”) since
early 2020 has disrupted the business operations and
developments of the Group. The Group has closely monitored
the development of the Covid-19 pandemic and the extent of
the impact depends on the duration of the pandemic and the
implementation of relevant policies and protective measures by
respective governments. The Group has paid close attention
to any significant changes of situation and has evaluated the
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows, as well as financial resources
available to the Group in the short to medium term.

The Group had net loss attributable to owners of the parent of
HK$201,379,000 (2021: HK$219,775,000) for the year ended
30 June 2022 and net current liabilities of HK$258,740,000
(2021: HK$88,571,000) and net liabilities of HK$331,698,000
(2021: net assets of HK$53,025,000) as at 30 June 2022.
The Group’s net loss for the year included certain non-cash
depreciation and impairment losses in an aggregate amount
of HK$248,224,000 (2021: HK$181,515,000). The Group had
total cash and cash equivalents of HK$117,412,000 as at 30
June 2022 (2021: HK$56,858,000).

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to
the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and
the ability of the Group to attain growth and cash positive
operations in the near future. Measurements of active cost-
saving and financial resources improvement to streamline/
enhance the Group’s existing operations and to focus on
improving the financial resources of the Group have been
implemented/contemplated by the Group to control its
operating expenses and cash outflows in the current and
coming years and to enable the Group to revitalise itself to take
advantage of any growth opportunities in the near future (the
“‘Improvement Measures”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. 1EREE (iZ

In addition, the Group has obtained a long-term loan facility
from a related party in the amount of HK$1,200,000,000
(the “Other Loan Facility”), of which an aggregate loan
principal amount of HK$447,486,000 was utilised as at 30
June 2022. The Group has also obtained a revolving loan
facility from a bank in the amount of HK$20,000,000 (the
“Bank Loan Facility”), of which an aggregate loan principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2022.
Further details of such facilities are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have evaluated relevant
conditions and events that are known or could be reasonably
forecasted/estimated. Based on such evaluation, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that, in light of
the measures/arrangements contemplated/implemented to
date, including, inter alia, the Improvement Measures, and
the availability of the Other Loan Facility and the Bank Loan
Facility, the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, it
is appropriate for the Group to continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

b AEFEEE—SREALERS &
RHEMME &8 E %41,200,000,000%
T(THMERME ) ERERETRBER
447,486,000 st 1R202296H308 B &
e x&EEFE B —MRTES—BRIRE
MELE > B8 420,000,000 7t (MRITEM
&) HPEMA£48%820,000,0007 7T
JR2022F6A30REFR -ZEMECES
SFHIBHIIN R FEIRRMIEE23 o

ARBEFETEEBARATAERA, G
StZERIRE REH - BINZFTE A
BEERA ERINESHER BITHNRE
I, 28k BiE (AP aE) iEEmU R E
thEMMERIBTERREZ I ESIE > &
EERERS TR BERBMERRKRNE
BESAEMERTRRRNEMBER
2 Hib AEBERFEREE202266830
HIEFEZGREMBmKRE  EEERBR

e e e
BICERE

maREEE
REMBRROBEARDRENBAE (4
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flzEBE (BEEELER) - HAEERZ
HERENREBMARIPEREARNE
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ERAEE Z 18R o

HALBEENEREEERERNRREEL
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(a) EREHRAMBREFAEAZGHL
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. 1REE (5

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2022 & ZE2022F6H30BLEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) as at 30 June
2022. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue to exist and
the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an impact on
the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 & E2022F6H30BLEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41’
72 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts? °

Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 —
Compatrative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current? #

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 & ZE2022F6H30BLEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3B & B kAN B BEFS
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R ER (2
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 R2022F 1B 1HS 2 BBz FEHR4 %
R2023F1B1HS BBz FERBEN
REETE SR LA HR - 1T AT AR

HREBEHENFEIR B BBRESES

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

~ W e

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — SRR ZE 5 — AN B S B RIEE IS
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a BEEIE A28 > 120209108 1E5] > #—48
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to FERER > AL smoR B
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in 5 HREABMHREERFE1TH 215752020
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary FI08EM > BEBMBRSER BRI TE
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than B AHARRNRBES SR FE39%E M
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023 EE B RREEDFIOENGRMRGE B

HAZE2023F 18 1B Z AT EHA

Further information about those HKFRSs that are currently RS EANAERNZES BB ERE AL
expected to be applicable to the Group is described below. RiE— S BRI o

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a EEMBEHmEERNSEIF BT 5 EETLL
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation FRAURZIEHABHRRZELE WRER
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference 2018F6 B 18 2 M F RSB SIEL > Mk
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued mATENSEEHIRTE c s EE5TININ AT B
in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. FEIRE R FEI  (FATELXAESIEL
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its DETEREEG BB ERREZHIME
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual SoZBIINMETE  MEBBARINABEBINETR
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a SRR EBESmMIEEE BN EBDT
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and HRFITHEAE R (FARTHBEREREEZE
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS g)-RER21GEE EREBUERS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately HREIW 2 ERED N2 ESEGTEL
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity FITRNEE (ERMBERERELZEE)—
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)- BREH2150 MIESIER - LS ZHFE
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. SIEANINEHBEASERER ZWAE
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do Eo ARERETMEHBE2022FETHIH BN %
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group L] c AN S B IEARAKBEBRELERER
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July RUEHSAEXRERBHS 2B XS
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business HAEFBBEFAENBEHHRSZEET®
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the %o

date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2022 & E2022F6H30BLEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if
an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 & ZE2022F6H30BLEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively
only to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 & E2022F6H30BLEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

*  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFTEGHBRIE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
joint ventures.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations, other than business combinations
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFXFEGHEBREE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in film productions and listed
equity securities at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. In testing
a CGU for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual CGU if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

2AFEEFERBRE (8)

FEAL
25 RRA RS EEARE

(a)

Z AT HEANNERZEAFEREZETR
KEME > BzEAAL :

(i) PEBISHRERIAER ;
(i) HEEBMEEAZE] ; N

(i) "AEEENEEBFATNZEE
EEEAE

or 4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) EAABRMENEUTEMERE
applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREAEEBR—SEEZMK
group; BRE ;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —ERAZEB(HHEMEBE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary BAE -WBAGXERZWEA
of the other entity); 8)) ZBE AR HEERE ;

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEBREAERAR—F=AZ
same third party; HERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —EEAE=-LEEZaERS
other entity is an associate of the third entity; MmMEMEEAE= %%%ZH%%%

/N
/N1

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZERATEENHEAEERFRH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EERMESNERIL 2 BER
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers BRENEE; AR EEN R
of the post-employment benefit plan; NEBNEE ;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZERX (a)FT B A iZEHlg it
person identified in (a); EEEH ;

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R(@)()PR#ERIA T HZERES
influence over the entity or is a member of the key KE ijj‘jz}%&%%“(jagﬁgz
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of BAE)TESEEBEAS ) &
the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (Vi) ZEBRXEMBERENKERE]
part, provides key management personnel services BAREBENANEENTAE TE 1, t
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. FEEEEBABRF
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT EEHBERBE (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or ten
years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20% to 33'/3%

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

84

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at FVPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFETHHEEME (2)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and
the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the FVPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
EVRL:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group may consider a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 —Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECLs on a specific basis according
to management’s assessment of the recoverability of each
individual receivable. Management considers the number of
days that an individual receivable is outstanding, historical
experience and forward-looking information to determine the
recoverability of the trade receivable.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised costs (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT EEHBERBE (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of lease arrangements
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the
lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the
expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash
flows and an equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated
over the term of the lease arrangements. The estimated costs
of reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT EEHBERBE (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Revenue from box office takings is recognised when the
relevant film is exhibited;

(b) Revenue from the sale of concession goods is recognised
at the point in time when the customer takes possession
of the food and beverage offerings;

(c) Revenue from the sale of other products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the products; and

(d) Revenue from screen advertising is recognised when
the performance obligation is satisfied, generally on a
straight-line basis over the service period of the relevant
agreement or as the relevant services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFETHHERME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Payments to retirement benefit schemes in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong and Mainland China are charged
as expenses when employees have rendered the services
entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFETHHEEME (2)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time
the cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable
to exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than HKS. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into HK$ at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether
or not to exercise the option to renew the leases. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease
term for leases of its cinemas due to the significance of
these cinemas to its operations and the significant leasehold
improvements undertaken (or expected to be undertaken) over
the term of the relevant lease contracts that are expected to
have significant economic benefits for the Group when the
options to extend those leases become exercisable.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for its property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets at the end of each reporting period and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Impairment is determined
by assessing the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs
or group of CGUs to which the respective property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relate and whether the
respective recoverable amounts of the CGUs or groups of
CGUs are less than their respective carrying amounts. For the
current year, the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs
or group of CGUs have been determined by management
based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections
specific to the respective CGUs and applying respective discount
rates which reflect risks relating to the respective CGUs. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets as at 30 June 2022 were HK$555,973,000
(2021: HK$555,590,000) and HK$1,001,020,000 (2021:
HK$1,016,049,000), respectively. Further details are given in
notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits

The provision for ECLs on trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits are based on assumptions about ECLs. The Group
uses judgements and estimates in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the results of the assessment. Further details about the
provision for ECLs on (i) trade receivables and (ii) deposits and
other receivables are given in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at FVPL

When the fair values of financial instruments at FVPL recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation techniques, including,
inter alia, the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from relevant observable markets/sources
where possible, but where this is not feasible, certain degrees of
judgements and estimates are required in establishing fair values.
The valuation requires management to make certain judgements,
estimates and assumptions about model inputs, including, inter alia,
projected cash flows, discount rate and other factors. Changes in
assumptions and estimates relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. Further details are given
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment, as appropriate. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group generally estimates the
IBR using observable inputs when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates, as appropriate.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services, and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Cinema operation
(b) Investments in films

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
bank interest income, unallocated gains/losses, non-lease-
related finance costs as well as unallocated corporate and
other expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
investments in listed equity securities included in financial
assets at FVPL and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REREER (2
(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2022/At 30 June 2022 HZE202286830HLFEE, 12022568
30H

Segment revenue (note 5) DEWA (f15E5)
Sales to external customers HINERIHE 306,713 306,713
Segment results DEEEE (205,815) (204,868)
Reconciliation: 77
Bank interest income RITHR S UA 7
Unallocated corporate and other ki) % K HMFA

expenses (5,110)
Finance costs (other than interest B1 #5557~ (A & & &4 B &

on lease liabilities) 41) (8,501)
Loss before tax PRIR AR5 18 (218,402)
Segment assets DEBEE 1,685,648 1,691,498
Reconciliation: 77
Corporate and other unallocated 1% K HAth KD EE

assets 117,705
Total assets REE 1,809,203
Segment liabilities PEaR 1,667,491 1,667,541
Reconciliation: 77N
Corporate and other unallocated — 1>% & HAth k) & 1&

liabilities 473,360
Total liabilities =K 2,140,901
Other segment information Hithr &R
Share of loss of a joint venture  fE{E— & & hEEE 3,318 3,318
Depreciation of property, plant and )2 « 128 & 555 = $TEE

equipment 89,637 89,637
Depreciation of right-of-use assets f A& &= > TE 117,838 117,838
Impairment of property, plant and 4% « 1428 R =5 1 2 &

equipment 11,077 11,077
Impairment of right-of-use assets {FRHEEEZFE 29,672 29,672
Fair value gains on financial assetsi% ‘A A BEF ABHm 2 &

at FVPL MBEZ ANEBERTE = (1,011) (1,011)
Gain on lease modifications HEEs Tz W& (66,258) - (66,258)
Investment in a joint venture R—REEaErEZRE 13,432 S 13,432
Capital expenditure’ BT 107,699 = 107,699

# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BARATHOERABYE WEREE(BFEHE
equipment (including additions related to a common control HEZEGESHBEBRNAE) -

combination).
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e RRMIEE
Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Year ended 30 June 2021/At 30 June 2021

REDEEN (F

HZE2021F6HA30HLFE, 120215F68

308
Cinema Investments
operation in films Total
BifrEiE BRRE a5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7T FE7T FET
Segment revenue (note 5) DEEURA (H7EE5)
Sales to external customers HIMVERIHE 192,908 - 192,908
Segment results DEES (219,283) (797) (220,080)
Reconciliation: 77
Bank interest income RITA B UA 74
Fair value gains on financial assetsi% ‘A A BEF ABHmZ &
at FVPL MEEZ ANEBENRG 801
Unallocated corporate and other #4931 K HMEAS
expenses (3,745)
Finance costs (other than interest Bf#55k 7 (FR E & &F) BBk
on lease liabilities) M) (5,128)
Loss before tax BRI AIES I8 (228,078)
Segment assets DEEE 1,663,114 5,489 1,668,603
Reconciliation: 77
Corporate and other unallocated 1K HAt RN EE
assets 57,144
Total assets WEE 1,725,747
Segment liabilities PEaR 1,382,412 50 1,382,462
Reconciliation: HIR -
Corporate and other unallocated — 1i>% & HAth R #H & 1&
liabilities 290,260
Total liabilities =N 1,672,722
Other segment information Hithr$aE R
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ 2 ~ 128 K585 2 315
equipment 72,913 - 72,913
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & E 2 T 106,940 - 106,940
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 FEUER 2 R{E 1,662 - 1,662
Fair value losses on financial BARBESFABRZE
assets at FVPL MEBEZ ANEEEE - 733 733
Capital expenditure* BAS H 78,958 - 78,958
#  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # EASTHEERBYE s RRE-
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022FE6830HLEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

I E
(a) HIERZHBA

Mainland China FR B A 3t
Hong Kong EE

Macau BFY

Other region in Asia Pacific DARHAMM R

122,925 133,201
162,771 59,462
20,890 -
127 245
306,713 192,908

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

EHRABR T UERATEth R ERE

(b) FRBEE

Mainland China HR R PRy
Hong Kong &
Macau JEPY

Other region in Asia Pacific DAREMME

641,924 589,558
745,069 704,683
170,377 261,550

13,055 15,848

1,570,425 1,571,639

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes non-current deposits
and other receivables.

Information about major customers

Revenue from transactions with an external customer derived
from the cinema operation segment contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

EHIERBBEEB R UE EFTE R
FANPRIEMEN 1R S EAMFERR

FERREH
FEEREESER—HIE AR B ERE
EEBKAL0% EZ AT

—HINER

An external customer

-EEEI N/A i@

* Contributing less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group
for that year.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F68A30HLEFE

5. REVENUE 5. kA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: RNEEZIADHFNOT -

Revenue from contracts with customers RKEHZEFRSHZIA

Income from cinema operation REEPREE WA 192,908
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEZFBRESHZIA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WAENMHED

Types of goods or services BmaARFEEER
Box office takings ZEEWA 270,093 164,097
Sale of concession goods RErEmise 17,545 11,684
Screen advertising services RREESRE 6,245 7,116
Others Hh 12,830 10,011
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3R E & B &4 I A 48%E 306,713 192,908
Geographical markets & 45
Mainland China FREIAH 122,925 133,201
Hong Kong 58 162,771 59,462
Macau P 20,890 -
Other region in Asia Pacific DAHMME 127 245
306,713 192,908
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRETNIRSBIIIASHEBELIN AR
recognised in the current reporting period that was LEARERN Z WA S EE -

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Short-term advances received from WERE B HATE (I RRIE ©
customers:
Cinema operation BT E
104 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{CEXEEBRAT]
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5. A (&

Revenue from contracts with customers KEERFHZIMA ()
(continued)
(b) Performance obligations (b) BHERE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Box office takings

The performance obligation is satisfied when the film is
exhibited to the customer and payment in advance is
normally required.

Sale of concession goods

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the customer takes possession of the goods and
payment is received upon delivery.

Screen advertising services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied over
time when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits as the Group makes the cinema
available for screening of advertisements over the period
of the agreement, while certain payments in advance are
normally required.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed because all the
remaining performance obligations are part of respective
contracts that have an original expected duration of one
year or less.

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

ARAEREBNSENERBIRNT

£ LN
BHEENEREHEETRIER M
P—ARFBERL IR

S

HefEmif &
BHEEREERE PG E @I U
BRRIB 2 RERGIEAY

BRESRE
EXRERRBRARNRRERESE
HIRES > BOEE—RNERRRE
RICHFEN mPsfEkr B ER » B—RE
BRI ETRIEA

ERRITTRER A NEER NENE
ECREMSE D RER) IR Z B
WERE  HEAAER TENEEISR
FREHHAR—F U THE SN —2
5o

6. HMMURA KUK m
H A AR I Z AT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$000
F&T T8

Interest income from: FEBWAKE :
— Bank balances —IR1T4#ETF 74
— Deposits paid —BfEE 1,427
Government subsidies* BT A 10,036
Gain on lease modifications HEETzWa -
Others Hih 405
11,942

The government subsidies mainly represented subsidies
received by certain subsidiaries from PRC’s local government
authorities and subsidies received under Employment Support
Scheme, Cinema Subsidy Scheme and Food License Holders
Subsidy Scheme of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these government subsidies.

B E2AETNEASMKEFEE
BT A VB R G » URARIBE BT RI1T
K@ BT MR 5HE) « BB E B st 8 Keds
MR R BB ETBIFTUREI B9 R - BT AT
AR ZE BB A R Z R EMFRT NRE
I§ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRIRAIRSIE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEE BB IETLAIRG (5T A) 5!
(crediting): BIEEY -

Cost of inventories sold* BEEFEMA! 4,276 3,910
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment™  #)% i2s R 2 e 89,637 72,913
Depreciation of right-of-use assets** CREBEZINE 117,838 106,940
Auditor's remuneration ZEETNE 1,920 1,400
Lease payments not included in the Kt AHEGRFAEZ
measurement of lease liabilities** HEMH 2,659 1,322
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ BEEFIFIS (FEIEEEHS (f1
remuneration (note 9))**: 9))*
Wages, salaries, bonuses and other benefits TE #e  TLAREMET 75,095 50,790
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIS EMEIR (REMR
contribution schemes)" stE)” 8,503 6,478
83,598 57,268
Fair value gains on financial assets at FVPL, BARBEFAEBRZESREEZA
net* AEERE TR
— Mandatorily classified as such, including — b DAL BERIER
those held for trading BERAR (1,011) (68)
Impairment of trade receivables* B ARG BIE" - 1,662
Impairment of property, plant and equipment* ¥ 2SRk B 2 B{E" 11,077 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets* ERESEZRIE 29,672 -
Foreign exchange differences, net FERERE ) FE 2,538

*  Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of o EtARRBIBmRAZ MTHE A
profit or loss.

*  Included in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement * HAREBERAZ THMESZIFRE
of profit or loss.

. There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by g KEBEAREZA 0] BE WA R
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of IREHEKF o
contributions.

**  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$89,345,000 W) 128 K sk B 2 3T 89,345,000 T
(2021: HK$72,562,000); depreciation of right-of-use assets of (20214 : 72,562,000787T) ; FREEEZIT
HK$116,038,000 (2021: HK$103,857,000); lease payments not £116,038,0007 7T (20214 : 103,857,0007%8
included in the measurement of lease liabilities of HK$874,000 70) 5 Rt AMEBSEFEZHEIRET4,000
(2021: HK$797,000) and employee benefit expenses of 7T (20214 1 797,000587T) U EREEF
HK$46,093,000 (2021: HK$31,865,000) are included in £46,093,00078 7t (20214 : 31,865,000 7T)
“Selling, marketing and other cinema operating expenses” in B AGEBERANZ HE mHEEBRRE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. fhEIPE BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE

8.

FINANCE COSTS 8. BAFSALAS
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BTSN Z DAl -

Interest on bank and other borrowings IRITREMEEF B 5,128
Interest on lease liabilities HESBNE 55,973
61,101
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=E
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to RIFH R FTsE s EmRA (T EmRA)-F
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock BCABMERFINEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () Ke(f)1&
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) REB(RBI(REEENEmER) HEI)EHE2
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BRI R AFEEEMEUT ¢

the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees e
Other emoluments: Hihph s
Salaries, bonuses and allowances $re N AL S Rh
Pension scheme contributions RAEFTEIHR
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BILIEMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REEZNTEIFERNTESTZHESE
during the year were as follows: mE:

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PRIEIS &+ 220
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen iRt 220
Ms. Tam Sau Ying BEEZ L 220
660
There were no other emoluments payable to the RAEE  ETMEMEX S FTEIL
independent non-executive directors during the year IERMITEEZBNE Q0215 : 8] o
(2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEME (&

(b) Executive directors (b) MITES
The fees paid to executive directors during the year were REELZFFHTESZH/SWT
as follows:

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BEEL L
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander WHIEE R E
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BSEEE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes Gl Ee e
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RAEE  ESERBEALTHRE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. N EIEWEEANE o
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. i mEiHES
The five highest paid employees during the year did not RAREE AREeHEETABEIME
include any directors (2021: Nil). Details of the remuneration FQR1FE | BEEAATEFEZAHE
for the year of the five (2021: five) highest paid employees who Q021F: ER) B EEZ FEFHMNES
are not a director of the Company are as follows: LT N

Salaries and other short-term employee e REMGHREEER

benefits 3,512
Pension scheme contributions BIKSEEIHER 370
3,882
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HFHERN NI SBEARNZIFEERSHEE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: mr

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2%1,000,00085T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001787c% 1,500,000/ 75 1
5
During the year, no emolument was paid or payable by RAEE  REBUEBIFEEZREHE
the Group to the non-director highest paid employees as BN HEMERAME EARSIINAZL
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EESNMAKREE % 2 B REREEE
compensation for the loss of office (2021: Nil). (20214 : #®)©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6830HIEEE

11.INCOME TAX 11.FR1§#

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2021: Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the BVI,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda and the
BVI.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for the current and prior years as the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China either had no assessable profits
arising in Mainland China or had available tax losses brought
forward from previous years to offset their assessable profits
generated during the current and prior years.

No provisions for Macau Complementary Tax and Malaysia
Corporate Income Tax have been made as the Group had
no assessable profits arising in Macau and Malaysia for the
current and prior years.

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rate for Hong Kong, in which the principal
place of operation of the Company is located and some of

AEEMEREBAENIREE > ILTHH
RAEEERFEEMENEBELEMRER
MiaF (20214 © &) o

IR B R R LB iR B BRI R R AR Bl »
FAEBTEARERRBRE R ESEAGFNE
RIPF1SH5

FEBNAFEERBEFERERTEAR
HMBI R EPTSIRIFLHEE LT RRAE
[ 7 R P 3t Y 32 RIS BB A SR S R B
HEEERRRRET > AR BBEE
ERNA#ARBHEELIRHEAFERIBESE
EEERESRREF o

AEBBERPIFTSM TN A ERAERE
FFTSMIFLEE  WHRRAERRAE
ERiBFFEREORFIRERADELE
RIFEERIR A o

BANBD T EEEMB A AT B D T EW
BABFMEMBEBEEMKtEBANE
MATEEZ IR R IR A EE BRI KT

the Company’s principal subsidiaries are domiciled, to the tax B2RESEHENT .
amount at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fi#n FiE7
Loss before tax FRIRETES 1R (218,402) (228,078)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rateiZ & 8 7A E R % 16.5% (20214 :
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 16.5%) sTEH Z MIBR R (36,036) (37,633)
Different tax rates enacted by overseas BINE BERNARRE
authorities (9,379) (4,279)
Income not subject to tax BEBMTRIERIRA (17,841) (1,511)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENEIRRY o ha 22,083 6,035
Tax losses not recognised RIESDIRIERTE 36,559 34,232
Tax losses utilised from previous periods  iB{F BRI 2 &AM BRI (227) (581)
Others Hih 4,841 3,737
Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate ZAEE BRI EHE 2 MIBESLE = -
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE

12.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.8ATEERFEAELESR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE k518

PARENT

Basic =N

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount for the year HEONF6HNHIEFE SR EXRE
ended 30 June 2022 is based on the loss for the year attributable EBEENRESASEEKRIEE ARSKRE
to ordinary equity holders of the parent of HK$201,379,000 (2021: FE 2 FE 15 5 38201,379,0007% 7T (20214 -
HK$219,775,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary 219,775,000 7T) RA QBN AFEBEIT
shares of the Company of approximately 3,213,341,000 (2021: B PGINE 19 81493,213,341,0008% (2021
3,213,341,000) in issue during the year. £ 13,213,341,0000%) st& -

Diluted e

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share BN EE2022F F2021F6 530H I EFEA
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2022 and ERTERBETHERE BRITEZER
2021 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares A AR B 2022 20216 H30H

in issue during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 43 - 3SRt il

IHFEFE2RSRENBREE

30 June 2022 2022F6H308
At 30 June 2021: F220214%6830H :
Cost DN CREI0) 463,160
Accumulated depreciation ~ REtTERAHE

and impairment — (135,444)
Net carrying amount RERE 93,004 327,716
At 1 July 2021, net of R2021E7H1B

accumulated depreciation S EITER

and impairment RE 93,004 327,716
Additions =t - 42,910
Transfers =y (92,771) 65,935
Additions — common control 7R E — HFEZEE| A

combination (note 30) (H5£30) 33,588
Depreciation provided during F & 7 85 # 4

the year (52,668)
Impairment during the year EEZ (& (8,963)
Exchange realignment [E AR (4,243)

At 30 June 2022, net of 722022568308
accumulated depreciation R EHTER

and impairment RE 404,275
At 30 June 2022: 12202268308 :
Cost PR 741,683
Accumulated depreciation  REtTERHE
and impairment (337,408)
Net carrying amount REFE 226 404,275
110 Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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59,992

(36,539)
23,453

23,453
8,377
4,801
2,464

(14,081)

(605)
(205)

24,204

101,464

(77,260)
24,204

174,252

(62,835)
111,417

111,417
10,419
22,035

9,941

(22,888)

(1,509)
(2,147)

127,268

300,273

(173,005)
127,268

790,408

(234,818)
555,590

555,590
61,706

45,993
(89,637)

(11,077)
(6,602)

555,973

1,143,646

(587,673)
555,973



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR MR
Year ended 30 June 2022 #E2022F6830HIEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1342 - 23 skt (48
(continued)

30 June 2021 2021468308
At 30 June 2020: 12020568308 :

Cost B 134,966 348,990 52,418 139,842 676,216

Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTERFE

and impairment - (84,426) (20,500) (46,766)  (151,692)

Net carrying amount RERE 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
At 1 July 2020, net of 202057518

accumulated depreciation IR EEHITER

and impairment RE 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
Additions =t 64,109 13,641 474 734 78,958
Transfers E= 54 (110,128) 79,372 1,761 28,995 -
Depreciation provided during F 78 %4

the year - (42,465) (12,054) (18,394) (72,913)
Exchange realignment fE R aAEE 4,057 12,604 1,354 7,006 25,021
At 30 June 2021, net of F2021F6830H

accumulated depreciation  HIFREFHTE R

and impairment BE 93,004 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590
At 30 June 2021: 11202146308 :

Cost %N 93,004 463,160 59,992 174,252 790,408

Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTE KA

and impairment - (135,444) (36,539) (62,835)  (234,818)
Net carrying amount RESE 93,004 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

The outbreak of Covid-19 since early 2020 and the
consequential unprecedented disruptions to the Group’s
business operations and developments as further detailed in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, coupled with
certain challenging external environment and other potential
developments, directly or indirectly, affecting the Group or
certain of its subsidiaries, have significantly affected the
operating and financial performances of various cinemas of
the Group, as well as their future outlook and developments.
The specific effect of these events, changes in circumstances
and potential developments (collectively, the “Changes in
Circumstances and Potential Developments”) on respective
cinemas of the Group became more apparent after certain
planning and forecasting process that underpinned the Group’s
year end impairment review. Based on relevant impairment
testings of the Group’s property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”)
and right-of-use assets (“ROU Assets”) as at 30 June 2022,
the Group recognised impairment loss for the year arising from
the Changes in Circumstances and Potential Developments of
HK$11,077,000 and HK$29,672,000, respectively, in respect
of certain PP&E and ROU Assets which belong to the Group’s
cinema operation segment. The impairment loss for the year
ended 30 June 2022 was determined based on the recoverable
amounts of the relevant CGUs to which those impaired PP&E
and ROU Assets relate (the “Relevant CGUs”), which were their
values in use, totalling HK$196,233,000, as at 30 June 2022, as
further detailed below.

Impairment testing of the Relevant CGUs

For the Group’s operating segment of cinema operation,
impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of each individual cinema, being the CGU to which
the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate. The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets/forecasts covering a five-year period or
the remaining lease term (including any expected renewal
period, as appropriate) of the relevant leased cinema property
(the “remaining lease term”), as appropriate, approved by
management. For certain CGUs, management considers
cash flow projections for impairment testing covering a period
in excess of five years are justified based on (i) the specific
nature of the underlying business (including the growth potential
of each cinema) and particular aspects of the film exhibition
sector; and (ii) the industry knowledge and relevant experience
of management in preparing such projections based on
what management considers as reasonable and appropriate
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of
the range of economic conditions and market developments
that management expects such would exist over the relevant
remaining lease term. For the current year, the pre-tax discount
rates applied to the cash flow projections for the Relevant CGUs
are in the range of 11.5% to 13.5% (2021: 11.5% to 13.5%)
reflecting specific risks relating to the Relevant CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE

14.LEASES 14.788
The Group as a lessee REBREREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various office and cinema KAEEBEEREBRRECSNMAE KET
properties used in its operations. Leases of properties are Y HESH KR EEYEREERRN
negotiated for terms ranging from 3 to 15 years. Generally, the PIEISFEz B -AEBRBERISHEESR
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased ENKRDAFTAREBINZRE cETHE
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts SHEIEETREEE LR SRE N

that included extension options and variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EREEE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets REBFEAREEZ  REmEURRE
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEZEENT

At 1 July 2020 R202057H1H 1,064,327
Depreciation charge ERX (106,940)
Lease modifications GEN=LCH) 27,648
Exchange realignment PE R SH % 31,014
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 72021568300 &%2021FE7B1H 1,016,049
Depreciation charge MERZ (117,838)
Additions hE 91,793
Additions — common control combination (note 30) 7R & - HEIIZHIES A4 (H15£30) 140,539
Lease modifications HEET (91,039)
Impairment (Note) BB (ffEE) (29,672)
Exchange realignment PE & A 22 (8,812)
At 30 June 2022 1202286 830H 1,001,020

Note: Hiat -

Further details regarding the impairment of right-of-use assets ERERAEBEEZ BENE—FTHEINGE

are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. BAFSERERMIzE13 ©

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAT 113

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 fE%R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE

14. LEASES (continued) 14.88 (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBEAN (2
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the KREEHESEZIREEREEUT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at beginning of year FH)ZREE 1,196,207 1,154,213
New leases MEE 85,914 -
Additions — common control combination 7R& — £ EEEI & 6 (12£30)
(note 30) 296,452 -
Accretion of interest recognised during  FRFESE > F B0
the year 54,445 55,973
Covid-19-related rent concessions from KB B A Z i HBEHEIE
lessors TEREMAS TR (49,354) (32,761)
Payments N (41,537) (42,448)
Lease modifications MEEs] (157,297) 28,310
Exchange realignment fE R (15,104) 32,920
Carrying amount at the end of the year PR ERZEREE 1,369,726 1,196,207
Analysed into: DA
Current portion RENEL 183,083 94,777
Non-current portion IERENE D 1,186,643 1,101,430
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HMESBEZIMAINHRERGEH
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. TEHRRMIEI6 ©
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) ERAEENETANERZTENT -

leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEaENS 54,445 55,973
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets LS E 2 TERY 117,838 106,940
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI E 2 1,785 524
Expense relating to leases of low-value EREBEEZEEHEEABE M

assets 239 198
Variable lease payments not included in kst AFEE & EsTE 2 00

the measurement of lease liabilities B 635 600
Gain on lease modifications MEETZ W= (66,258) -
Covid-19-related rent concessions from R B HIE A Z ka5 & BB

lessors RANFESE R (49,354) (32,761)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 29,672 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7185 NFESE 2 4248 89,002 131,474

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31 to (d) HEZRESRDERERER GRS
the consolidated financial statements. FERERMIEE3L ©
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE
15.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

I R—EeEREZRE

Share of net liabilities FE(L & & S48

Loan to a joint venture m—EaEhEREER

(3,068) -
16,500 -

13,432 -

The loan to a joint venture is unsecured and interest-free. In
the opinion of the directors, the loan is unlikely to be repaid in
the foreseeable future and is considered as part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture. There was no recent history
of default and past due amount for loan to the joint venture.
As at 30 June 2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as follow:

A—EEEtEZERAERERRE -8
E05 RERATKAIBER A RARRER
WRRHFERN SEEERE PR
7o MG EREEMI EFLREN KR
TH° 120226830 > BEE BT A
R o

FEBZERAEREFBEUOT !

H Cinematic Issued Hong Kong
Limited capital of
HK$500,000 S
BETRRA
500,0007%87T

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

H Cinematic Limited, which is considered a material joint
venture of the Group, is primarily involved in cinema operation
and is accounted for using the equity method.

50

50 50 Cinema

operation
B EiE

LR ERARTEERE

H Cinematic Limited#tRAKREB ZEX
SETE, TBREBFEE  TU#ERZE
ABRo
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15.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of H Cinematic Limited adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount of the financial statements.

I R—EEeEREZRE (&)

TERBHH Cinematic LimitedZ BAFE K
ME Tt B Rz EREREHEE
W EABFFEER R IR EE YR -

2022
HK$°000
FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 4,339
Other current assets HMmgh&EE 594
Current assets MENEE 4,933
Non-current assets ERBEE 133,624
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other THaEFeEB 2 KREMENRIER
payables and provisions ) 16,534
Other current liabilities Hittngh&a 3,148
Current liabilities piEA=NE] 19,682
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and JEi B R EE (FOIEE 7 R EME
other payables RIE) 125,011
Net liabilities BB (6,136)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint ~ AEBE A& 2 7 RS HEE |
venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEEBRELLB] 50%
Carrying amount of the investment REREE (3,068)
Revenue WA -
Depreciation e (3,197)
Interest expense FERX (622)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year — FEEEER 2 EAE4E%E (6,636)

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted investments in film productions JEEMEFEERE

16.%’&%1%@%1’7\?5332@%%?

2022 2021
HK$’°000 HK$'000
THET THET
5,489

The Group’s investments in film productions as at 30 June
2022 and 2021 are mandatorily classified as financial assets at
FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments
of principal and interest.

In prior years, the Group entered into several investment
agreements to invest in several film production projects, which
entitled the Group, among others, the rights to share the net
profit or loss of respective films attributable to the Group, as
appropriate, in accordance with the terms of the respective
investment agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2022 & ZE2022F6H30BLEFE

16.

17.

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Group measured, at initial recognition, the cost of these
investments based on the cash consideration for these
investments.

All the underlying film productions had been completed and the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period represented
the fair value of the estimated net future cash flows from these
films attributable to the Group.

INVENTORIES

Inventories mainly comprise food and beverages,
consumables and other goods relating to the Group’s cinema
operation.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

8 5 R
Z4E!

Trade receivables
Impairment

16. BARBEFABRmZEME
E(#&)

FEERVGEEFHREZSREZREN

B EREREZMAE -

FREER B RIFIE A MRS R
ZIREEASTERRGZEER ZEeTRK

REREFENANEE-

17.78

FEFEUEARIEEEREEZRMK

Bk HE R E At B o

18. B B EUR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
9,727
(1,662)

8,065

For the Group’s box office takings and sale of concession
goods and other products, payments on demand or in advance
in cash or by major credit/debit cards or other electronic/
mobile payment methods are normally required, with the
settlements from corresponding banks or other financial
institutions normally within 2 to 30 days. The Group’s trading
terms with its other customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period is generally 1 month from the date of billing. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts
due from members of the Emperor Group other than the
AY Entertainment Holdings Group (“Other Members of
the Emperor Group”) of approximately HK$74,000 (2021:
HK$103,000) as at 30 June 2022, which are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

MAEBEFWA FFEmkEMERZ
HE > —RUREIUTBER R NERF
SUHEMEF B8 275 B R SR AT
AT ERRITHEMEREE—RE N2
FIARNGEE -ERENEMERZES
FEREEUEESDNEE - EEH RN
BZAESRIER -FAEBEERESH
SR B FE R IR o 8 HAAE Bk FH B 1 FE RE AR
2t o AREE N WML H B Z USRS AT
IR M E M E IR A - B 5 UG

AR

R2022566H308 EWHEEE K S (15
TR G RG E B PRI (THfthE 2 EE R
8 1) IE#74,0007% 7T (20214 : 103,000
B) st AAEBZBSRBWNE EAEIK

s AR R EREE -
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HLEEE
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

18. B S EWR (A&

RIEHR > B 5 BRI R H RN
ERREZRE DTN ¢

Within 1 month EAB R
1 to 3 months 1E3(EH
Over 3 months EBLULE

BRI REREREHEEESNT !

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At the beginning of year REH]

Additions — common control combination & — HEIEE| &
Impairment losses (note 7) BERSE (ff37)
Amount written off as uncollectible WiR AE A IN(El 2 £ 58
Exchange realignment PE R A%

At the end of the year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a probability of default approach to measure ECLs.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and certain relevant information that
is reasonable and available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forward-looking credit risk information.

Loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables with total
gross amount of HK$3,201,000 (2021: HK$1,662,000) was
recognised in the current year as the trade receivables were
in default and considered by management as credit impaired.
Other than that, the ECLs as at 30 June 2022 and 2021 were
assessed by management to be minimal.
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  19.7&{1Zk « i e & HithFEUR Sk

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Prepayments FETRR 34,386
Deposits* g 46,715
Other receivables HAEWRIE 844
81,945
Less: Non-current portion B IEREN S D (43,552)
Current portion mEnER D 38,393

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had pledged time deposits of
HK$535,000 (2021: HK$561,000) for certain guarantees issued
by a bank.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to deposits and other receivables for which there was no
recent history of significant default and there were no material
amounts in default. Their recoverability was assessed with
reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the ECLs as
at 30 June 2022 and 2021 were assessed by management to
be minimal.

Lease arrangements with Other Members of
the Emperor Group and related deposits paid

During the current and prior years, the Group had lease
arrangements (the “Lease Arrangements”) with Other
Members of the Emperor Group in connection with the leasing
of office and cinema properties from these companies. The
total nominal amount of deposits paid to these companies in
connection with the Lease Arrangements of HK$5,441,000
(2021: HK$5,574,000) was included in non-current deposits
as at the end of the reporting period. As at 30 June 2022, the
ROU Assets, the amortised cost of the deposits paid included
in non-current deposits and the lease liabilities in connection
with the Lease Arrangements amounted to HK$85,819,000,
HK$3,899,000 and HK$98,200,000 (2021: HK$98,951,000,
HK$3,859,000 and HK$106,202,000), respectively.

Y R202256H30H  AEBE R —REIRITE H
2 E TR R IK IR E B 77 70535,00078 7t (2021
£ 1 561,000/87T) °

StA LSRR SREERFTATEENE
HECER R E RN BAITIRAN L T K A FEIGR
BR - HrJEIM2E TREBANEERR
il BEEEE02022F 2021468
30HZ FRRAEEREEM

HHMASEBRRE ZHAEZHEU
KRHEABFiEE

RAFERBFFE AEBEHMBEEE
B EMZEARRE ZPHAE KRERY
EEHEZH ((HERH) BBEERHE
B2 B E QB2 EEEEES,441,000
T (20214F @ 5,574,00058 70) B RE HA
REF AFEREN L S - 122022486530 7 £
HEZHBERMZERABEE T AFERD
RE2ENRSNEHEAAUREEA R
3 Bl %85,819,0007% 7T« 3,899,00078 7T K&
98,200,000 7T (20214F : 98,951,000 7T »
3,859,000/ 75 52106,202,000787T) ©
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20.IRERINEEFEY

Cash and bank balances

RERIBITEE

-izia 56,858

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$29,473,000 (2021: HK$24,977,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on applicable bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 3 months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

21.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS

RERR FEBUARBETARK))
STEMIR S KRIRITA 85 29,473,00058 7T
(20214F : 24,977,000/87T) c A RMETRAE
R A E M ENE - 287 » AR E A sh
EEEEA ) R(EE  EERNEEIER
E) REBEABAEREEITINEE
FERTTIR A RIE R AEMMENE -

ETIRTHERZRAIEANRTERERN
TR KBRS R E B RUAMRR &1
REMBRZE BFAEBRFHNREH
SKIMTE » X 3% =18 28 A TE B FE RUR R BREX A
B RITEBRIFERN L EIENTERE
EERIFRIRIT -

21. B F AR - R &t

=4

Trade payables B 5 R () 34,531 15,438
Accruals fESTE 24,369 11,953
Other payables HAFE(T R (b) 58,260 40,497
117,160 67,888

Notes: btaE -

(a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

(a) RIBEHFR BZRIRREZQMHZIRED
T

Within 3 months MEAER
Over 3 months EEUL

13,523
1,915

15,438

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 2-month terms.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of 2 months.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022F6830HIEEE
22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

22.8886R

Short-term advances received from UWEE 5 G HATE(FERIS
customers:

Cinema operation EyfreiE

19,332 15,218

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for
cinema operation. The increases in contract liabilities as at
30 June 2022 and 2021 as compared to the end of the prior
financial period were mainly due to the increases in short-term
advances received from customers, including as a result of an
increase in the number of cinemas at the end of the respective
reporting periods.

23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

BHBEEERREERT WAL FEHITA R
15 - BUAE R BUHARARLE - §H B /02022
FR2021F68308 2B MEZ AP IEE
FIEHATRN RIBA PIE I (B E R & RS
REFTE R IFAE) ©

23. 5t RIRTT R EMES

Current REN
Bank borrowing repayable within one
year or on demand — unsecured

Non-current

Other loan — unsecured

RITEE —EIEH
IETREN
HhEm —

AR —FRARREXREEZ

(@) 20,018 7,008
(b) 452,476 282,365
472,494 289,373

The bank borrowing and the other loan are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Notes:

(@) The bank borrowing bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate plus 2.2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had the Bank Loan Facility
amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2021: HK$20,000,000), of which
an aggregate amount of HK$20,000,000 (2021: HK$7,000,000)
was utilised as at 30 June 2022.

The terms of the bank borrowing of the Group with a total
carrying amount of HK$20,018,000 as at 30 June 2022 (2021:
HK$7,008,000) contain a repayment on demand clause and,
accordingly, the bank borrowing has been classified as a
current liability. For the purpose of the above analysis, the
bank borrowing has been analysed as a bank borrowing
repayable within one year or on demand.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRQE

IRTTERREtMERIZABTTEHE

(a) MITEEREBRTEEFBINES2.2%5t
Be

22022668300 AEEERIETEME
& £ 220,000,000 7t (20214 20,000,000
7t ) > H A48 8820,000,0007% 7T (20214 :
7,000,000 7T) 1220226 B30HEB A ©

12022568308 » A& EARIREE4$20,018,000
771 (20214 © 7,008,0007%7T) ZSRITEME 2 &
EFERIFER AL - SRITERC RO ELRE
BE- LD S > RITERERD TR
—EFRHEEREEOIRITER
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23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

The other loan bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had the Other Loan Facility
amounting to HK$1,200,000,000 (2021: HK$1,200,000,000), of
which an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$447,486,000
(2021: HK$275,000,000) was utilised as at 30 June 2022.

The other loan of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$452,476,000 (2021: HK$282,365,000)
(including accreted interest) as at 30 June 2022 has been
classified as a non-current liability as the lender, who is a
family member of Dr. Albert Yeung and a director of the
Company, has agreed not to demand repayment of the other
loan together with all accrued interest and all outstanding
amounts until 20 January 2024 (2021: 20 January 2024).

24. PROVISIONS

At 1 July 2020
Exchange realignment

PESREE

23

SHERITREMBES (&

Mzt (4%

(b)

HEMtERIZEBIRITREZER B MNFE B 2% R

12202256 H30H - AEREA HthEMREE LR
£1,200,000,0007& 7t (20214 : 1,200,000,0007
7)) R BEMAE48EE447,486,00078 71 (2021
££:275,000,000787T) 122022476 530HE B A ©

12202268308 » AEEERE(E #452,476,000
77T (20214 @ 282,365,000/ 7o) (B1E R 5t 7
B) ZHMERERDERIERIEE LA
RER (BB LIRARE—REFZ —BRE
RE)BIREZE2024F1820H (20214 : 20244
1A208) AR EREEHMETERPABES
MEMRFIAHAEESREE

24 3545

12020478 1H

Provisions for
reinstatement
costs

{E1S A
HK$°000
FHT

44,816
1,395

At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021
Additions — common control combination (note 30) 7~ & — EREIEHI& 5 (H15£30)

122021968308 %2021 7A1H

Additional provision KEIMEE
Exchange realignment PE R AR
At 30 June 2022 1£2022%6830H

Pursuant to the terms of relevant tenancy agreements, the
Group, as the lessee of certain leases of properties, has the
obligations to reinstate its relevant leased properties to their
original state or to a condition as specified in the respective
tenancy agreements at the cost of the Group at the end/upon
the termination of the relevant lease terms.

The provisions for reinstatement costs are determined based
on certain assumptions and estimates made by management
with reference to past experience and currently available
information. The assumptions and estimates are reviewed and
revised, where appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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25. DEFERRED TAX 25 IRIERRIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the IRIERIEBEEEREENEAFEEZSEHUWT -

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIEEE

At 1 July 2020 2202078 1H 320
Deferred tax debited/(credited) to profit EE KB (BtA) 2

or loss during the year (note 11) IEERRIE (ffaE11) (333)
Exchange realignment PE A% 13
Gross deferred tax liabilities 12021568300 K20214

at 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 TB1RZRLHRIBE 45
Additions — common control combination 7 & — £ [F1Z% 4 &4
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss ~ FERE& st A ZIELERIE

during the year (note 11) (Hfa#11)
Exchange realignment bR AR
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 122022468308 Z IEIEIR 1B
2022 I=RERREE
Deferred tax assets IRIERIEEE

At 1 July 2020 1220205 781H 320
Deferred tax credited/(debited) to profit FEREBRst A (k) =

or loss during the year (note 11) RIERRIE (fYat11) (333)
Exchange realignment ER R 13
Gross deferred tax assets at 12021468308 K&2021F

30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 TBIRZIFIERIAE E LR
Additions — common control combination 7~ & — FL[F1Z 4 & 4
Deferred tax debited to profitorloss ~ FEERE&REIMG 2 ELERIE

during the year (note 11) (Hs£11)

Exchange realignment R A

Gross deferred tax assets at 122022F6 8300 ZIELERIEE
30 June 2022 EHRER

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRQE
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78,992

(4,365)
7,489

82,116
31,188

(13,409)
(2,029)

97,866

78,992

(4,365)
7,489

82,116
31,188

(13,409)
(2,029)

97,866

79,312

(4,698)
7,502

82,116
31,188

(13,409)
(2,029)

97,866

79,312

(4,698)
7,502

82,116
31,188

(13,409)
(2,029)

97,866
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Gross deferred tax assets
Gross deferred tax liabilities

LLﬁI/E\ﬁEIUM gg
LLﬁIE%T/ \l\/l—t gg

25-5&L*ﬁlﬁ (/I'E

IBETRIBEE (7

MEMMS & TELREBENSEDE
RAEBBIR R PIEITIES o LU AR
REMS  AEBBLRBEERZ D :

97,866
(97,866)

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the 7% %?éﬁﬁ‘zﬁk/ﬁﬁqﬂﬁﬁw
R IBEEFEE

consolidated statement of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of HK$958,032,000 (2021: HK$672,578,000),
subject to the agreement by the relevant tax authorities,
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose, of which an
aggregate of HK$546,367,000 (2021: HK$433,550,000) is
available indefinitely and the remaining unrecognised tax
losses will expire in around one year to seven years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have mainly arisen in entities that have been loss-making
or due to the unpredictable future taxable profit streams of
these entities and, in the opinion of the directors, it is currently
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

26.ISSUED CAPITAL
Shares

Authorised: EE -
50,000,000,000 (2021: 50,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

50,000,000,000 (20214 :
50,000,000,000) i SR EE
0.0l Tz EiBk

RBREAR REERNKRERREGES
958,032,0007%87T (20214 : 672,578,000/ 7T) »
TEARRAM BB IHERRRIR T S MIER1E
B AR EE RS MIEGRZ A ZRK
FESRTR E ] o & R & 88 & $£546,36 7,000/ 7T
(20214F : 433,550,000/ 7T) /@ mAArR > 87 T
REESDAR TR R P] R HE SR R ERFE SRR ) »
RN —EECEER - ARNZSHETIEE
FEEFSEENER HNZSIBEBRAIE
ﬁ'JE’J?EPKFEu%ﬁmﬂ e BEERAEAIAE
SEA DB RIIRE R FEER A - AL R
E’Jtuz—frﬁﬁ?aﬁﬁw FIERIRE E °

26. BT
iz {n

500,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid:
3,213,340,890 (2021: 3,213,340,890)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

ERTRBHHE :
3,213,340,890 (20214 :
3,213,340,890) SR EE
0.017B Tz &k

32,133
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 8
November 2011 (“Old Scheme”) which lapsed automatically
upon its expiry on 7 November 2021. A new share option
scheme was adopted on 7 December 2021 (“New Scheme”).
The major terms of the both Old Scheme and New Scheme
(collectively the “Schemes”) are summarised as follows:

1.

Purpose of the Schemes: To enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
shares in the Company as incentive or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees, directors
of the Company, its subsidiaries or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest and any
provider being a person who, pursuant to a contract for
goods or services, provides or renders goods or services
to the Company or its subsidiary which are commonly
provided or rendered by an employee of such provider.

(a) Total number of shares available for issue as at
27 September 2022 (i.e., the date of approval of
these financial statements) under the New Scheme:
321,334,089 shares.

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as at
the date of approval of these financial statements: 10%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Schemes:

(a) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors of the Company
or their respective associates in any one year
exceeding the higher of 0.10% of the shares in issue
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved by the shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option: At any time from the date of acceptance of
the option to such a date determined by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) but in any event
not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: No minimum period unless otherwise
determined by the Board.

(a) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or may
be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant; and

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

27. 85 ERTE
fRRRE
A2 5 B 52011411 A8 HR 40 56 Ag 7 3t
) (TEEH8)) > M58 2R2021F1187
I B 1 B S o — (BT R AR A B

202112878 (THh st 8 1) R -

Estd

Ffist8) (A T FatE)) 2 E2EM
BT -

1.

ZEAE 2B BRAATBEERKRS
BERTBRELGIBARTRN  1F
AHEREBPIFEMZ ZREEE -

Bif oERSEEAEREE AL
S HNB AR S AERERNE AT
FEREZERZESUREMHAE
B (RIERBERIRBEREAETAT
IEWBADRHERURBIAS
(BEmztEENEESRHAEFER
ARFS) ) ©

(a) MREEFSHEIF2022698278H (B
BERZSHMHTREZEH) oI FH
TZRDHEEN  321,334,0898% A%
7o

(b) MEMZFHHRERZ BHEMS
BEEITRMZBEDE 1 10% °

ZESHBETERGERSHENE
i LR

(a) FRIFERRERHLAE > BB EM12(E
BANRBBREETRMNZ1% ;
P

(b) MEM—FREEEZRINA
BIBUFATEFTARES
ZHMBEARLZBRE 58
BETRHM 20.10%k B E 8
5,000,000/ 7t (U B 5 & & %)
AR IR AL -

TTEBRERTRM IR | R
BREDHEEALIEZS(ES
g ) EE 2 BB IR 2 AR AERE -
PAEMIERT - NMSBIEE H B #Est
104 o
BRETENLAFAZ&REHR :
MBRIFEFERTEE  SRILEREH
fR o

(a) FAGATUIZANEERRHERSPT BB H
B81% . 1.0087T ;

(b) MBI AIFE R EATRZ HA
B . B EEEEE28ER ; &

(c) BEMEMMIBNNRAERNE
FRERBR ¢ A o

[ I S

)
)

H
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share options (continued)

8.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(c) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the New Scheme: approximately 9
years (expiring on 6 December 2031).

No option has been granted under the Old Scheme and New
Scheme since their adoption (2021: Nil).

28. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 61.

(a) Share premium

The application of share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(b) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation of
repurchased shares and accordingly reduction of nominal
value of share capital of the Company.

(c) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amount transferred
from the capital account due to the capital reduction
and share premium reduction as a result of a capital
reorganisation of the Company on 8 May 2014.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution under certain circumstances. However,
the Company cannot make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.

(d) Exchange fluctuation reserve

126

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

27.58Re ST ()
fRRRYE (E
8. METHEEZEE:

B (HJETHEE) NHEFEEE
HEARER TIRSE ()R RTFEBP
AW E BRERPIRZ RN IRT
B, ()R EEE T A EER S B
PEBRATEHRERATZ TN
mE ; k(ORHEE-

9. HETEIRFIERER ¢ 4994 (5R20314F
1286H@EMm)°

B ERANEE 5T 8 R B 5T BIRE » S E s 8ITE T
SRS HEETS H (20214 @ ) o

28.1#&
REBNRAEE KRBT FEERNFHE SRR R E
N ECLENGEE R EEIRES o

(a) B{nim(E
1R 15 i AR 2 FE P 2 E BB 198148 24
S BAOBIRE -

(b) BasFEEl A
B EE AR S EHEBERRE K
AR A A B AL (8 o

(c) HAnEER
BB RIS R A T 201445880
2 P& A B A T 1T R s 1) S R AR 1
AR E AR S5 -

RIEBEREIISIFABE BIEST) &
MEERIE TIE R TR DK - 28
FRUURIER » A BMS B B E R T
R IK & (1) AR B ERF N 2K E A
SEIANHEIBPERE ; H(i)EAF
BEZAZRERAMENE&R-

(d) SMEEIR BN R
5 B 1 LS T PR BB S 75
MBRERELEZERER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022846H30H1IEFE
29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

2. BEEXRFFERERZIFEE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING B ATl

INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- KEBHERE EAIEIERER B AT NGE
controlling interests are set out below: B

Percentage of equity interest held by non- JEVERR R P IEIRE B DL -
controlling interests:
Emperor UA (together with its subsidiaries HERB (ERENBARABEA
collectively referred to as the “Emperor UA I‘ § SR T 1)

Group”)

Loss for the period from 22 April 2022 PEEEIEERERB202244822H
(date of common control combination) to 30 June  (FEIEH|&H HER) £202266830H

2022 allocated to non-controlling interests: HARSAYESIE ¢
Emperor UA Group HEREER (9,429)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling interests  JEIZRSRETE IR E BEAM R 54565 ©

at the reporting date:

Emperor UA Group HERBEE (98,246)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial Tﬁ@J?ﬁEﬁ?‘i—;ﬁ%Zﬂ?ﬁ:ﬁ%ﬂﬁ?iFﬁ
information of the Emperor UA Group. The amounts disclosed KEZEBAEESEE BHREERHERZ
are before any inter-company eliminations: T

Revenue WA 5,217
Total expenses, net 4aRAS P RE (36,649)
Loss for the period HARSES 18 (31,432)
Total comprehensive loss for the period AR 2 E 1B EE (32,070)
Current assets MENEE 12,223
Non-current assets FEMEEE 148,531
Current liabilities VeIV (309,056)
Non-current liabilities JERBER (179,188)
Net cash flows from operating activities REREEHZIRERE TR 3,237
Net cash flows from investing activities RERE TSRS RS 55 11
Net cash flows used in financing activities BARmE e RS REFRE (5,284)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEBYR/ FEE (2,036)
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

9. BEHEEAFERERZIEEE

MERR (&

AEBBEEBAIFEREDR Z B AT
BT -

2021
Percentage of equity interest held by non- JEER R PIIFR AR B DL
controlling interests:
Sino Spirit International Limited (together with Sino Spirit International Limited
its subsidiaries collectively referred to (EREMBRRRTE
as the “Sino Spirit Group”) Sino Spirit&EM ) 45%
2021
HK$'000
FHET
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling PEEEIFERERNFEERE .
interests:
Sino Spirit Group Sino SpiritsE & (8,303)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling interests  JEIZRGHE TS IR E BEAM R 514565 ©
at the reporting date:
Sino Spirit Group Sino Spirit&E & (43,841)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the Sino Spirit Group. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

TEFIRSino SpiritEEZ HFHEENREE -
FrivEr £ AERS X BAEKHEA
ZFE

2021

HK$'000

FET

Revenue A 25,683
Total expenses, net B3R (44,135)
Loss for the year FEEE (18,452)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FELHEEIBLLE (17,145)
Current assets mMENEE 7,329
Non-current assets FERBEE 110,666
Current liabilities mEEE (121,751)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (93,669)
Net cash flows from operating activities RERKEEH IR MEFEE 5,524
Net cash flows used in investing activities AREEESZIREREFEE (220)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BRRERerIRenEF5 (3,274)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents REMRIREEBYILINFEEE 2,030

The loss for the period from 1 July 2021 to 22 April
2022 (date of common control combination) allocated to
non-controlling interests and the accumulated balance of
non-controlling interests at 22 April 2022 (date of common
control combination) of the Sino Spirit Group are approximately
HK$7,594,000 and HK$51,238,000, respectively.
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 30. EEIEHIT 2B aH

COMMON CONTROL

During the year, pursuant to certain sale and purchase
agreements, Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise Limited
(“Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise”), an indirect subsidiary
of AY Entertainment Holdings, the ultimate holding company
of the Company, transferred its 100% equity interest in
Tale Success Limited (“Tale Success”) and a loan owing
by Tale Success to Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise (the
“Shareholder’s Loan”) to the Group for a total consideration
of HK$4.0. As the Group and Tale Success are under
the common control of AY Entertainment Holdings (the
“controlling shareholder’) before and after the transfer, the
transfer has been accounted for as a business combination
under common control.

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has elected to account for the common control
combination using the pooling of interests method.
Accordingly, the results and cash flows of Tale Success and its
subsidiaries (the “Tale Success Group”) are consolidated by
the Group from the date of transfer, being the date on which
the Group obtained control, and continued to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. The consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2022 has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the Tale Success Group using existing book values from
the controlling shareholder’s perspective. No adjustments are
made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or
liabilities as a result of the common control combination.

Equity interest in a subsidiary of the Tale Success Group held
by a party other than the controlling shareholder prior to the
common control combination is presented as non-controlling
interests in equity in applying the pooling of interests method.

The difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying amounts of the net liabilities of the Tale Success
Group and the Shareholder’s Loan, net of the non-controlling
interests, at the date of common control combination
amounting to approximately HK$120,257,000 is recognised in
other reserve.

FRIRBEETEERGS REBXNLES
RBAB(TREBELE ) (RRABRAZER
NEVGZ IR TR BB AR) M4
EEEZHP Tale Success Limited (T'Tale
Success]) BY100%8% # LA Kz Tale Success
EREEETLENER(RERERR)
HMAEALOET HNNEEZAI 2B
AEFEETale SuccessIHIES iR Lt 122 p%
(TPERGRRER 1) HEE S > iR E ARRY A
HEER T2 B E50 o

MZEGEUHERERMS > AEEEEFH
BmaEARTEEIZEG & FHIk > Tale
Successk H Iff B A 7 (TTale Success&
B)NEERRSTEHAEEEEEH
A EEESZEFENB ) BRE
IR WHEERS AREEZITH#KLIEZH
Ao REBP2022FE6 8300 s S5
RN ERERE IR ENBEFERIRE
ERFELIEYTale SuccessERMEERE
& o WEIEH AU KRR A BERFEEE
EHIaHmBERTAnEERa &

RERIESI S HATH—B AL (ERRKRER
40 PREEB B Tale SuccesstEE—RBIM B A
Bz EREEESHENEENETS
JEFERG RS ©

RERZS & EH BENREHETale
SuccessEE v BEFEAKRIERZIRA
ERNERE(KINMRIEZERER) REMEE
s8> £ EEAYA120,257,00078 7T ©
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)
The Tale Success Group is principally engaged in cinema

operation in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Details of the
carrying accounts of the assets and liabilities of Tale Success

30. HRERI T ZEBEH (F

Tale SuccessEB ETE R PR AERES
WEEPrEE - PR HEEESISHBEH Tale
SuccessEEEEEMEBBEZRERE KR

Group and the Shareholder's Loan at the date of common BEFGEBEWTE

control combination are as follows:

At 22 April

2022

7£2022%4H822H

HK$’000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment Y ER ST Y 45,993

Right-of-use assets FRREE 140,539

Investment in an associate R—REBE R ZRE —*

Inventories 78 1,070

Trade receivables =RZ T EN 1,584

Prepayments, deposits and sundry receivables — FE{JRIE - i< K 3 TEFE UGN 20,048

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 8,903

Trade payables, other payables and accruals BRI EfthE R EST & B (27,878)

Provisions BB (13,984)

Contract liabilities BHEaE (18,864)

Lease liabilities HEAE (296,452)

Amount due to the immediate holding company  FE{J E3Z1ZRA S ZUIE (328,865)

Amount due to non-controlling interests FE{T IR T B (70,225)

(538,131)

Non-controlling interests JRIERG TS 89,009

Shareholder's Loan REER 328,865

(120,257)

Other reserve recognised EEREMGEE 120,257
Satisfied by: AR

Cash e —*

*  Amount less than HK$1,000 * /DRR1,000B T 2 48
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31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
had non-cash additions to ROU Assets and lease
liabilities of HK$85,914,000 and HK$85,914,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
leased properties.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, additional
provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
certain leased properties of the Group amounting to
HK$4,710,000 was recognised with corresponding
additions to ROU Assets of the Group for the year.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
had non-cash lease modifications to ROU Assets
and lease liabilities of HK$91,039,000 (2021:
HK$27,648,000) and HK$157,297,000 (2021:
HK$28,310,000), respectively, and gain on lease
modification of approximately HK$66,258,000 (2021:
Nil), in respect of lease arrangements for certain
leased properties.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities
30 June 2022

31.

EARSRERME
(a) TEFREXSH

(i) # ZE2022%F6B308 EF E> &
SENEBMEZHERHER
EREEERBEAEZIFER
=7 & 7 Bl 7385,914,0008 7T &
85,914,000 7z °

(i) BZE2022F6H300LLEFE  5LAE
EEETHEMEZEBEEMN
AEASMNE 4,710,000 70 E HESD
PHEFEREERCREEE M
FERE o

(i) & E=2022%F68308 L FEE > & &
EmE TR BETHHEE
FRESEREEAEZIFREMA
E1E:T9 51/491,039,0005 75 (2021
£ 1 27,648,000/ 7T) K& 157,297,000
7T (20214 : 28,310,00057T) » U
R E1E 5] 2 W 966,258,000
(20214 : #E) o

(b) MEEBEEZEEZES)

202246H30H

At 1 July 2021
Changes from financing cash flows
Covid-19-related rent concessions

New leases
Additions — common control

Change in ownership interest of

R2021F7H1H

from lessors

MHEE
(H15£30)

combination (note 30)

MERTREZEF
RELEAZHERS
= IBHERARIEERR

B — HEERIG 6

WE AT A REEDEE

subsidiaries
Lease modifications HEE:]
Interest expense B
Exchange realignment PE R A%
At 30 June 2022 1£202256830H

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRQE

289,373
174,620

1,196,207
(41,537)

43,589

(49,354)
85,914

296,452 70,225

= (157,297)

8,501 54,445
(15,104)

1,369,726

(43,589)

472,494
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31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BLRBRERERMEE(E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEZHELEZEBZEH
financing activities (continued) (&
30 June 2021 20219F6430H

At 1 July 2020 7202078 1H 148,313 1,154,213 3,709 43,589
Changes from financing MEREREZ
cash flows =59 135,932 (42,448) (3,709) -
Covid-19-related rent REHBEAZIT
concessions from lessors  JFEHE RN
FHEER - (32,761) - -
Lease modifications MHEEs] - 28,310 - -
Interest expense FBRX 5,128 55,973 - -
Exchange realignment e R FAEE - 32,920 - -
At 30 June 2021 5220216 830H 289,373 1,196,207 — 43,589
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZIRERHLE%E
The total cash outflow for leases included in the SFAGERERERZHEEZRER
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HARZRE YU T -
Within operating activities RE&EEHA
Within financing activities RREESA
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. B KIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of REREHR > AEEERUTEREKIE

the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: UTFBIEDTAEREME
Property, plant and equipment ER A6 18,489
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33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED

PARTIES AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE
EMPEROR GROUP

(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with the following parties during the year:

3. AMBALIREMEZERN
Bl 5

(a) BEEHa MBS MR MM PR
2R 5 RPN ) REBPRF
EETHAEALAUTRS :

Other members of the AY

Entertainment Holdings Group

Sales of goods HEREm

Film rental expense B HERY
Other related parties* HhgAEA >
Sales of goods HEREm
Company secretarial fee REMEE

Interest expense on other borrowing & & 2 | 2

Other Members of the Emperor HE2f£EHMEE

Group

Purchases of furniture® BERM
Interest expense on lease liabilities A& & &F) S5

Lease payments not included in the kst ATREEETEZ

measurement of lease liabilites* B & {J ="

Financial advisory fee MR &

Reimbursement of general and

administrative expenses

Sales of goods HEREm

BREREEREBEMRE

BN —RRITEREX

432
709

60
200

(vii) 5,052

666
5,251

(iii)
576
580

8,658
215

The other related parties include (1) an entity beneficially
owned by a director of the Company and (2) a family
member of a director of the Company and Dr. Albert
Yeung.

The underlying related party transactions also constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

* HMBEAL8E)RARAR-RES
BEmMAEZERE RQERE—RES
Z—EBEERERGEL

o RBLEHRAEATZ EE - LIREIE
AR ZIMERIFHR RIFERAERS o

itz

The sales of goods to related parties were on terms as () mEAEALTHEGRHIZIEMBEAR
agreed by the relevant related companies. WE Z IRRETT ©
The amounts charged were based on terms as agreed by (i) FrERz 2B ERZ R EERA
the relevant parties as set out in respective agreements. THREZ R
The purchases of furniture were based on terms as (i) BBERITHIZIERMBEAEERA L H
agreed by the relevant parties as set out in respective TEZAERGTE
agreements.
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33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE
EMPEROR GROUP (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

134

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) The leases were based on terms as agreed by the
relevant parties as set out in respective tenancy
agreements.

(v) The amounts charged were with reference to the costs
incurred.

(vi) The company secretarial fee charged by the related
company, which is ultimately controlled by a director, was
based on terms as agreed by the relevant parties.

(vii) Being interest on the other loan from a family member of
a director of the Company and Dr. Albert Yeung. Details
of the terms thereof are disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The amounts due to related companies, representing an
amount due to a subsidiary of AY Entertainment Holdings
Group of Nil (2021: approximately HK$1,074,000) and
amounts due to Other Members of the Emperor Group of
approximately HK$3,249,000 (2021: HK$9,048,000), are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to a joint venture is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand (2021: Nil).

As at 30 June 2022, the amount due to non-controlling
interests is unsecured and interest-free.

As at 30 June 2021, the amount due to non-controlling

interests was unsecured, interest-free and not repayable
within 1 year from the end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Fees e

33.

AREALTREMESEEK
S5 (&)
(a) (&

Kt © (4&)

(iv) ZFEETERSHEREFMIERA
THEZIER

(v) PRz TSR EFTEERZ A o

(Vi) H—RESRAERZEEARWIZ
AEMEETERERAALREZIFR

(Vi) HREFABD—REEFABELZ—2
HKEMBHNEMERZH B - ARIER
SFIBEMBIR M BERAMTE23 -

(b) rEtRIiE A B 2RIE » BIFE (T 43 Al 12
G EE BT ARTIEAZE (2021
F 1 #91,074,000/870) UL EMHEE
B H fih B & /A B FUIE#93,249,00078 7T
(20214 :9,048,000787T) AEIKIF &
BREIGEREE

() ER—RIagtEsIEARIKHR 08
FAREREE (20214 @ H)o

(d) 7202226 2308 » FE(T IR HE A 3R
TERERARRE

(e) 202146 A308 » AE(T IEERBHE A 3R
TEAERT - R R REABRSHRE
IERNEE -

(f) =EBETEEEASZHRM

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
TAT TRT
1,660

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34.EEI D2 ERMT A
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIER|ESH T ERNREHRZERmENT -
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
30 June 2022 2022568308
Financial assets EREE

Investments in film productions B AERE — 5,850
Trade receivables L2 EN 17,653 17,653
Financial assets included in SEATBR - e R E MBI
prepayments, deposits and other Bz eMEE
receivables 64,584 64,584
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 117,412 117,412
199,649 205,499
*  Mandatorily designated as such o agflmitisE
Financial liabilities o =R

Trade payables =RZ I INEN 34,531
Financial liabilities included in other payables and st AEAIFESFREStE R 2 SREaE

accruals 75,929
Amounts due to related companies FETREEABIFRIA 3,249
Amount due to a joint venture B —RBaEhERE 250
Amount due to non-controlling interests FE(T IEIE R e 2 TR IR 70,225
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHERITRAEMESR 472,494

Lease liabilities HEafE 1,369,726
2,026,404
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)
30 June 2021

Financial assets

202146H30H

THMEE

34.EREI N2 ERMT A (BE)

Investments in film productions B AERE 5,489 - 5,489
Trade receivables ER Y 3EN - 8,065 8,065
Financial assets included in STATET R HE R H KR
prepayments, deposits and other ~ BZ £ FHEE
receivables - 47,559 47,559
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - 56,858 56,858
5,489 112,482 117,971

*

Mandatorily designated as such

Financial liabilities

* o SRmlntbisE

e SN

Trade payables =RZ I INEN 15,438

Financial liabilities included in other payables and st AEMIFEI R EStE R 2 SREaE
accruals 51,598
Amounts due to related companies FETREEABIFIA 10,122
Amount due to non-controlling interests ENE[Z2 -y S 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sHEIRITRAMESR 289,373
Lease liabilities HE&aE 1,196,207
1,606,327
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

B[L5. FMIAZARBERAAE

BEFR

rERESMTAGREESEMAQREE
BEZEMIERIN ZBREERANEE
LI

Carrying amount Fair value
IREE DREE
2021 2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FE7T FHT FET
Investments in film productions B8 &8 /F%E 5,489 5,489

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, the current portion
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
companies, a joint venture and non-controlling interests,
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings reasonably
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities/repayable on demand of these instruments
or the effect of discounting is not material. The fair values
of the non-current portion of financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amount due
to non-controlling interests, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings had been calculated and assessed mainly
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, as appropriate. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 30 June 2022
and 30 June 2021 were assessed to be insignificant.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses the
fair value measurement of financial instruments and analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by management.

EEEEFHT G TRERERFEEE
Y~ B 5 WK RENER D RIS A TR
BREREMERRZEMEE - BZ BN
FoStAHMEBNRKESERZEME
B ENREAS —BaE8hERIFER
B RIEU KT BRIRITREMEEZ ANE
BENEREZREAESEES TERAR
ZETANBRAME AREREER
WEEB AR E - IERBBE DB ATAN
PR REMBUWRZ EREE B IE
EREaEN R RIRTRAMEEZA
AEBEDEZEERBRBLURREER
B iR FEIBAEM T A (MEA) 2 REa]
FFZRREIRFAIAR RIS R E St B Rt {h o
AEER2022F6 308 K&202146430
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE . RTAZARBERARE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included in the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

For investments in film productions which were released for
theatrical release in its primary markets, their fair values as at

BF%(E)

TMEERBRZANEBERIANERE
81 B2 RFR S (RIAHEBE HER

SN PRz BREAIR - ERLUT R ER
B&sTEANEE :

MEREETEHHEENR BERXRIFRE
ma > ZH2022F %2021F6H30H 2 A%

30 June 2022 and 2021 were estimated with reference to the BEL2REZEZEEMMEZERTGHIEF
remaining net proceeds receivable from the exploitation of the EEEEIT(EE o

films.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2022 and 2021:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022 5%k

MUTFA2022F%2021F6 8308/ T A
EFfRERTAIRRBASBRERSCHR
ERR P

Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Financial Valuation input to the input
instruments technique BAROHRR Range BAZEQAREE
EMTHR =t WABE gE BRE
Investments Income approach, Discount rate 6.50% (2021: 6.50%) 5% (2021: 5%) increase/
in film discounted cash BLIRE 6.50% (20214F : 6.50%) decrease in discount
productions flow method rate would result in
BRAERE WA T % BRI decrease/increase in
WEMEE fair value by HK$2,000
(2021: HK$11,000)
5% (20214 : 5%)
REIREIE N, R
BERANEERLD,
1#4N2,0008 7T
(20214F : 11,000787T)
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022FE6830HLEFE

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BJEMITAZAREBERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEER(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy RREBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIITEEEESHTAAAEBENEZSE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: BRANEBESEZEE
Assets measured at fair value: BARBEIEZEE
30 June 2022 2022%F6H30H

Financial assets at FVPL: BARBES AEm

CERMEE
Investments in film BB ERE
productions
30 June 2021 2021%6H30H

Financial assets at FVPL: BAnBEst AEn

JEHMEE
Investments in film EFAERE
productions - - 5,489 5,489
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE2022F6H30HIEEE
35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 5. ERMTREZARBERA

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEE4, (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 KREEEIMNADEEST=EESHUF

during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT TET
Financial assets at FVPL: BRARBEAEBZEZERIEE:
At the beginning of the year RER] 6,222
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profitor 1B R~ I (E18)
loss “azE (733)
Settlements i -
At the end of the year PR 5,489
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair NEBN2022F KX2021 56830 A EES
value as at 30 June 2022 and 2021. RfaRANEEFEZEMEE
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value MRAFE » FUREF2E 2 B BEADEE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers STEER HeMBEEREREEIEAR
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial BETEEANELEIR(Q021F : &)o
liabilities (2021: Nil).
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. B REMEIE B R REE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise FEBRZFESHMTAOESRERETRE
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, HMEE-HESE  BAIFERERRIEMN
amount due to non-controlling interests and cash and cash ERERREEEY LEEMTAZTE
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments BN ARERXFESERMES KAEH
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group BELZIEAMEMEEREE B EME
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as KRE FTRABSKRE - BIRUWE 5t
investments in film productions, investments in listed equity AN BREREMERTRZEMEE
securities, trade receivables, financial assets included in BoENMT T AEMENRREAER
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, THEEUKEEAT R—EEEREZL
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and F T EERRBEREE-
balances with related companies and a joint venture, which
mainly arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments rEETMIAEELE 2 FEZRARANEER
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and wINERE S EERBATBE S B
liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for EEEm RIEZEEZERR K F
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. RE RSBl T o
140 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEBERAE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BRI EEBRREBUR (&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk I ESE A
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest NEEFmETEHAEFR I IYFHFXRTEZ
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank STREIBTREMEEEE HIENXEFEH 2
and other borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group B o REE BB TFE Y E N EESE
mitigates the risk by monitoring closely and regularly the BR =7 | i o

movements in interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRETEFFEHMWEBERFILAE 2 ER
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other T REBRKRKRAEE(BREYERITK
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (through HthES &) WM =Xo g IR 818
the impact on floating rate interest-bearing bank and other 7 BEE o

borrowings).

30 June 2022 2022%6H308
HK$ borrowings BLEE 2,362
(2,362)
30 June 2021 20215648308
HK$ borrowings BILEE 50 1,447
(50) (1,447)
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXILEXEEFRAT 141
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AT IEBEREE (2

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from transactions by and balances of an
operating unit in currencies other than the unit's functional
currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”) exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (due to
translation of monetary assets and liabilities).

4 BE R B

FEBBEERZEEEAR - ZFRBRKE
SEBUMZEMN RSN G5
TZRGREEZEF-

TREREMMBEEMERFRIFTAENER
T REEGRABR(ARRMEEREE
REBR)NRERFAREERARZSH(H
RADLH ) EXRHSIEA L BRI
}go

30 June 2022 20225%6H30H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against 8B TR ERARSSEE
the MYR

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against #8707 ERAES SHHE
the MYR

30 June 2021 20215%6H30H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against 8RR ERAESHRE
the MYR

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against &R ERALE S S HE
the MYR

Credit risk EE R

The Group mainly trades on credit with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

142 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEXEEXERERAT
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE2022FE6830HLEFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. A EIEBEREBER (&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BAEMERERMER (&)
30 June 2022 2022468308

Trade receivables* e

Financial assets included in st ATE(I R~ 12 & KR E A
prepayments, deposits and ~ FEWFIEY SREE
other receivables
— Normal** —EE* 64,584 64,584

Cash and cash equivalents ~ H& KRS ZEY)
— Not yet past due —HAREH 117,412 117,412

181,996 202,850

30 June 2021 2021F6830H

Trade receivables* S - - - 9,727 9,727
Financial assets included st AFEMF R & R EM

in prepayments, deposits  FEWGRIEY SREE

and other receivables

— Normal** —EE™ 47,559 - - - 47,559

Cash and cash equivalents H& KRS ZEY)
— Not yet past due — B R AR 56,858 - - - 56,858
104,417 - - 9,727 114,144

* For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified * REBMEZERRERBZRER L E—
approach for impairment, further detailed information is PHBRERE M BIRRM T 184KEE
disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in O HABOR - ReEREMBIRRZ EREEY
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered EEEETARAHREGAES BMEE
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no REETR SR E EBVBREILUREERGEE
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant N o

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate funds to meet
commitments associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows of
the Group are closely monitored by management on an on-going
basis, considering the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities
and financial assets, and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

36. M EMGEEBERRER (&

mENE £ RS
AEESTERFEREZETMUmERE SR
BERMZAE BEEZRAEETME
BHRETMEE BN RS EE TR
RERe BRECEEERYRRAER
fﬁ.ﬁuui °

KERNBREHRZ EMEBEENRBIHOR
BRIR A BIHRIE R T -

30 June 2022
Trade payables
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A E.fth & {7 &1 & &
other payables and accruals stERZ £rAE
Amounts due to related companies f& {< B8/ T 218
Amount due to a joint venture fE(J—REI&EERIE
Amount due to non-controlling & IEIT I8
interests
Interest-bearing bank and otherst EiR17 K E & &

borrowings
Lease liabilities HES®E

20225 6H830H
E) NN

34,531

75,929
3,249
250

70,225 =

20,018
188,298

392,500

34,531

75,929
3,249
250

70,225

479,358
770,959

1,250,317

499,376
1,572,443

2,256,003

613,186
613,186

30 June 2021 2021%6H30H
Trade payables =71 NN 15,438 - - 15,438
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E fth f& T TR &

other payables and accruals stERZ £RAE 51,598 - - 51,598
Amounts due to related companies f& {7 B & A 5178 10,122 - - 10,122
Amount due to non-controlling J&E{TIEIEG R IE

interests - 43,589 - 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITRAEMBEER

other borrowings 7,008 297,784 - 304,792
Lease liabilities HEaRA 147,313 593,776 762,326 1,503,415

231,479 935,149 762,326 1,928,954
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BRI EEBRREBUR (&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TMENE TR (&
As at 30 June 2022, the above interest-bearing bank 7202256830 » BR E 18 420,018,000/
borrowing with a carrying amount of HK$20,018,000 (2021: 75 (20214 © 7,008,000/ 7)) 2 Eitst B4R
HK$7,008,000) contains a repayment on demand clause TERSEREXREERER > BFHEERT
giving the relevant bank the unconditional right to call in the AR Z NP E A EERED Rt
borrowing at any time and, therefore, for the purpose of the MERFABRIMS REREAIRE
above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on Ko
demand”.
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors of the BEALMETRE  RABEEL AR
Company do not believe that the bank borrowing will be ZERTERBN AR EAEEREERE
called in in its entirety at any time before its maturity and REBIE > Wl A BIREIRI TR S K H K&
they consider that the borrowing will be repaid in accordance IRITREPMENEIREHEERE - ERHETLE
with the maturity date as set out in the banking facility letter BEITIAEAAET | AEBRGEHTE
and bank correspondences. This evaluation was made mERHEBENG SIS ; TNEEED
after considering: the consolidated financial position of the E=4 DA AERBD IR EIRRA AT
Group at the date of approval of these consolidated financial Bl

statements; the lack of events of default, and the fact that the
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the bank borrowing which B SHERIZITENVIEITEIIER
contain a repayment on demand clause, the maturity profile ZERITERI202266 8300 BIEIHRR
of the bank borrowing as at 30 June 2022, based on the KREREHNXRERFIBUETE EEEE
contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of ERIBETBIRE) FHyuT .

any repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

At 30 June 2022 12022568300 20,479 20,479

At 30 June 2021 11202168308 - 7,129 7,129
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AT IEBEREE (2

146

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios, as appropriate, in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 30
June 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing the total borrowings (including amount
due to non-controlling interests and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings) by total assets. As at 30 June 2022, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 30.0% (2021: 19.3%).

37.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there are
certain legal proceedings involving Emperor UA.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 July
2022, Emperor UA commenced a proceeding in the Court
of First Instance in the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) by way of originating
summons for an injunction order against a 30%-equity
shareholder of Emperor UA (the “Minority Shareholder”)
from presenting a winding-up petition against Emperor UA,
based on a loan thereto of approximately HK$70 million (the
“Loan”) in respect of which a statutory demand (the “Statutory
Demand”) was served on Emperor UA (the “Injunction
Proceeding”).

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 July
2022 (the “Updated Announcement”), the High Court
has granted a permanent full injunction order under the
Injunction Proceeding in favour of Emperor UA restraining the
presentation of a winding-up petition based on the Statutory
Demand in respect of the Loan. The Updated Announcement
also stated that the Minority Shareholder had filed a winding-
up petition (the “Petition”) to the High Court against Emperor
UA in relation to the Loan and, inter alia, on grounds of
insolvency and a hearing for the Petition had been scheduled
(the “Hearing”). As set out in the Updated Announcement,
Emperor UA has been advised by its legal advisers that it has
a bona fide defence and will contest heavily the Petition in the
Hearing.
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Year ended 30 June 2022 #E2022F6830HIEEE
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38.ZxASIEA#S4RE

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BRERARNRERARZ MBI RZER
EE L

NON-CURRENT ASSETS SERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZIRE 96,311
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{ 51 ~ &% K L FELUL R 287
Cash and cash equivalents REMRIREEEY 1,155
Total current assets TMENEEEE 1,442
CURRENT LIABILITIES pEAN=K
Other payables and accruals HAMRE TR FE 5T 827
Amount due to a related company ESRIEABRIE 60
Total current liabilities TmENEEEE 887
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE EFE 555
Net assets BETFE 96,866
EQUITY ¥
Issued capital BE1TRAS 32,133
Reserves (note) & (HaE) 64,733
Total equity R AR A 96,866
Note: BaE :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NABHEEZBEZNT

At 1 July 2020 7202078 1H 912,843 50 58,658 (710,011) 261,540
Loss for the year and total FEBBRFEZAEEBE

comprehensive loss for the 488

year (196,807) (196,807)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 1202168308 &

2021 2021F781H 912,843 58,658 (906,818) 64,733
Loss for the year and total FEBBRTFEZEBIBE

comprehensive loss for the L

year - - (5,108) (5,108)
At 30 June 2022 722022568308 912,843 58,658 (911,926) 59,625

39. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 39. 4R S MR R AL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEBEIRERD N 20202E082THKESEE

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 September

2022.

HEE R AR RETIEE o
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REHMBHRE

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilites TFRIEFMAEFR BERETREEZEE BE
of the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the K&&> LHFEFEETE 2 EBEXIESHER
published audited consolidated financial statements: E

REVENUE A 306,713 192,908 126,245 145,753 91,202
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRI EIES1E Pali)] (228,078) (354,202)  (134,285)  (158,355)
Income tax credit FriERIKe - - 976 - 242
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERE PALs)) (228,078)  (353,226) (134,285)  (158,113)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: M TALTFE(LESE :
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZ=DN PLElere)]  (219,775)  (342,181)  (126,437)  (153,797)
Non-controlling interests JEFERG R (17,023) (8,303)  (11,045) (7,848) (4,316)

Pabiia]  (228,078)  (353,226)  (134,285)  (158,113)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHARE

Total assets BB E chlelisl 1,725,747 1,716,344 700,273 902,608
Total liabilities e Pl (1,672,722) (1,458,797)  (101,144)  (161,468)
Net assets/(liabilities) BERE(aE3RE) (331,698) 53,025 257,547 599,129 741,140
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: I\ T A T RE(L#E ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZ=PN (233,452) 96,866 293,673 623,518 752,706
Non-controlling interests JEFERS M Ly (43,841) (36,126) (24,389) (11,566)

(331,698) 53,025 257,547 599,129 741,140
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